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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,

MCcGINN, SMITH & CO., INC.,
MCcGINN, SMITH ADVISORS, LLC,
MCcGINN, SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORP.,
FIRST ADVISORY INCOME NOTES, LLC,
FIRST EXCELSIOR INCOME NOTES, LLC
FIRST INDEPENDENT INCOME NOTES, LLC,
THIRD ALBANY INCOME NOTES, LLC,
TIMOTHY M. McGINN, AND
DAVID L. SMITH,

Defendants, and
LYNN A. SMITH

Relief Defendant.

10 Civ. 457 GLS-DRH

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE,ORDER GRANTING
A LIMITED STAY OF DISCOVERY, TEMPORARY
RESTRAINING ORDER, AND GRANTING OTHER RELIEF

On the application of defendants TIMOTHY M. McGINN and DAVID L. SMITH

(hereinafter “Defendants”) for an Order:

(1) Staying the oral examination of Defendants TIMOTHY M. McGINN and DAVID L.
SMITH, currently scheduled for May 25, 2010 and May 26, 2010, pending the Court’s decision

on the underlying Motion for Stay of Civil Discovery; and

(2) Staying the requirement that Defendants, TIMOTHY M. McGINN and DAVID L.

SMITH produce the documents request in the First Request for Production of Documents,

pending this Court’s decision on the underlying Motion for Stay of Civil Discovery.

This Court has considered: (1) the Complaint filed by the SEC; (2) the
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Affirmation of attorney E. Stewart Jones, Jr. outlining the relief prayed for and the reasons

therefore; (3) the Memorandum of Law annexed to attorney Jones’s affirmation; and (4) the

exhibits attached thereto.

Based upon the foregoing documents, the Court finds that a proper showing has been

made for the relief granted herein, for the following reasons:

1.

It appears from the evidence presented that, unless ordered not to do so, the SEC
will conduct depositions of the Defendants on Tuesday, May 25, 2010, and
Wednesday, May 26, 2010, pursuant to the civil litigation commenced in this
court on April 20, 2010.

It appears from the evidence presented that the Defendants have filed a Notice of
Motion asking that a Stay be granted in the instant civil proceeding against them;
however, it appears as though no decision will be rendered on that motion for
some time.

It further appears from the evidence presented that, on or before the date that the
SEC investigation began, the U.S. Attorney’s office of the Northern District of
New York commenced a criminal investigation of the Defendants concerning the
very same conduct and subject matter as the instant civil proceeding. Defendants’
homes and business properties in New York and Florida were raided pursuant to
search warrants issued in the Federal District Court of the State of New York and
subpoenas have been issued for the production of documents and for the
compulsion of testimony to be brought before the Grand Jury in the Northern
District of New York in connection to the federal criminal investigation.

It further appears that the exact same information, discovery, documents,
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testimony, and other relevant materials are being sought out by both the U. S.
Attorney’s office in its criminal investigation, and the SEC in its civil
investigation.

5. It appears that if the depositions of the Defendants are allowed to be conducted on
May 25-26, 2010, Defendants face the untenable choice of deciding whether to
respond to questions posed, or to assert their rights under the Fifth Amendment.
If they choose the former course, they risk providing the U.S. Attorney’s office
with incriminating leads or evidence that may be used against them. If they choose
the latter course, they greatly increase the chance that they be found liable in the
SEC’s case against them for substantial sums of money. Both entities are clearly
interested in the same information, and will assuredly use any and all information
obtained against them in either proceeding; thus, allowing the depositions to go
forward places Defendants’ crucial Fifth Amendment right against self-
incrimination in grave jeopardy.

6. It appears from the evidence presented that, unless order not to do so, the SEC
will compel the production of documents relating to, inter alia, business and
personal transactions and financial interests relating to McGinn, Smith Entities
and the Defendants.

7. It appears that if the Defendants were compelled to produce such documents in the
instant civil proceeding at this time, when Defendants are under Federal criminal
investigation by the U.S. Attorney’s office based upon the same set of facts and
issues, for the above-stated reasons, Defendants’ Fifth Amendment rights against

self-incrimination would be jeopardized.
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7. Good and sufficient reasons have been shown why procedure other than notice of
motion is necessary.
8. This court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action and over the

Defendants, and venue properly lies in this District.

NOW, THEREFORE,

L.
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the SEC show cause, if there be any, to this Court at on
the of ,2010,in Room _ of'the James T. Foley United States Courthouse, 445

Broadway, Albany, NY 12207-2924, why this Court should not enter an Order, pending a hearing
and determination of the Defendant’s Motion for Stay of Civil Discovery, temporarily restraining
the SEC from taking the depositions of Defendants or compelling production of the documents
outlined in the SEC’s First Request for Production of Documents.

II.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED THAT A COPY OF THIS Order and the papers supporting the

Defendants’ application be served upon the SEC on or before May 2010, by

personal delivery, facsimile, overnight courier, or first-class mail.

I11.
IT IS FURTHER ORDER that the SEC shall deliver any opposing papers in response to the
Order to Show cause above no later than May at 4:00 p.m. Service shall be
made by delivering the papers, using the most expeditious means available, by that date and
time, to the offices of E. STEWART JONES, PLLC, 28 Second Street, Troy, NY 12180, Attn.:

E. Stewart Jones, Jr., Esq., and the offices of DREYER BOYAIJIAN, LLP, 75 Columbia Street,
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Albany, NY 12210, Attn: William Dreyer, Esq.. The Defendants shall have until May
201, at 5:00 p.m., to serve, by the expeditious means available, any reply papers on the
SEC.
IV.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Order shall be, and is, binding upon the SEC and each
of their respective officers, agents, employees, servants, attorneys-in-fact, and those person in
active concert with them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service, facsimile,

or otherwise.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

Issued At:
May 2010
Albany, NY
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,
10 Civ. 457 GLS-DRH

Plaintiff,
V.
ATTORNEY AFFIRMATION
MCcGINN, SMITH & CO., INC., IN SUPPORT OF ORDER TO
MCcGINN, SMITH ADVISORS, LLC, SHOW CAUSE

MCcGINN, SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORP.,
FIRST ADVISORY INCOME NOTES, LLC,
FIRST EXCELSIOR INCOME NOTES, LLC
FIRST INDEPENDENT INCOME NOTES, LLC,
THIRD ALBANY INCOME NOTES, LLC,
TIMOTHY M. McGINN, AND
DAVID L. SMITH,

Defendants, and
LYNN A. SMITH

Relief Defendant.

E. STEWART JONES, JR., ESQ., under penalty of perjury, affirms as follows:

I am an attorney at law duly licensed to practice in the State of New York, and [ am
associated with the law firm of E. STEWART JONES, PLLC, the attorney for the above-
mentioned defendant TIMOTHY M. McGINN, and as such I am fully familiar with all the facts
and circumstances in this case.

1. This affirmation is being made upon information and belief, except as to those matters
wherein it states that your affirmant has actual knowledge thereof.

2. I make this affirmation in support of the defendants’ TIMOTHY M. McGINN and
DAVID L. SMITH Order to Show Cause.

3. On May 17, 2010, Defendants were served in the instant matter with Notices of
Deposition, compelling Defendants to appear for depositions on May 25 and May 26, 2010.

4. On April 29, 2010, Defendants were further served with a First Request for Production
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of Documents in the instant matter, compelling them to produce documents and other
information relating to McGinn, Smith & Co. as well as Defendants’ personal finances.

5. On or about April 21, 2010, federal agents from the FBI and IRS conducted a series of
raids in connection with a Federal criminal investigation of the defendants and their brokerage
firm, McGinn, Smith & Co.

6. At or about the same time, it is known by this Affirmant that the U.S. Attorney’s Office
in the U.S. District Court of the Northern District of New York, who is charged with prosecuting
federal crimes, issued multiple Subpoenas calling for files, documents and oral testimony to be
brought before the Grand Jury of the U.S. District Court in Albany. Affirmant has confirmed this
information with Assistant United States Attorney Elizabeth Coombe.

7. Further, it is understood that more than one attorney who has been hired to represent
employees or previous employees of McGinn, Smith & Co. have been informed by the U.S.
Attorney’s office that a criminal investigation is underway, that there are one or more "subjects"
of the investigation, and that the targets of that investigation are the Defendants herein.

8. Clearly, the subject matter, fact, and law at issue in the SEC complaint and
investigation, including the assets involved in the entirety of the alleged fraudulent transactions,
are under investigation and at issue in the federal criminal investigation against defendants

9. While Defendants ultimately seek a stay in the civil proceedings herein due to the fact
that they will be placed in an untenable position in having to choose between exercising their
Fifth Amendment rights or to proceed with the SEC inquiries and face substantial civil and
criminal penalties, time is of the essence.

10. This Affirmant, who enters this action solely for the purposes of this Motion and

request, attests to the meritorious nature of the underlying Motion for a Stay of Civil Discovery,
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and further attests to the inherent necessity that the SEC be temporarily restrained from
conducting the impending depositions, currently scheduled for Tuesday May 25, and Wednesday,
May 26, 2010, due to the constitutional implications of Defendants and the fact that Defendants’
underlying Motion will be moot should the depositions be allowed to move forward.

11. This affirmant further attests to the need for the SEC to be temporarily restrained
from compelling the production of various other incriminating documents and information as
included in the SEC’s First Request for Production of Documents.

WHEREFORE, the SEC should be temporarily restrained from compelling the depositions of
Defendants on May 25 and 26", 2010, and demanding the production of the documents
requested, as good and sufficient reasons exist why procedure other than notice of motion is
necessary in this proceeding, given the impending date of Defendants’ depositions as scheduled,
the content therein of the documents requested to be produced by Defendants, and the fact that
they are currently the targets of a federal criminal investigation.
DATED: May 21, 2010

s/ E. Stewart Jones, Jr.

E. STEWART JONES, JR.
Bar Roll No.: 103064.




Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-DRH Document 26-2 Filed 05/21/10 Page 1 of 11

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,
10 Civ. 457 GLS-DRH
Plaintiff,

MCcGINN, SMITH & CO., INC.,
MCcGINN, SMITH ADVISORS, LLC,
MCcGINN, SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORP.,
FIRST ADVISORY INCOME NOTES, LLC,
FIRST EXCELSIOR INCOME NOTES, LLC
FIRST INDEPENDENT INCOME NOTES, LLC,
THIRD ALBANY INCOME NOTES, LLC,
TIMOTHY M. McGINN, AND
DAVID L. SMITH,

Defendants, and
LYNN A. SMITH

Relief Defendant.

MEMORANDUM OF LAW

E. Stewart Jones, Jr., Esq.

E. STEWART JONES, PLLC

Bar Roll No.: 103064

Attorney for defendant Timothy M.
McGinn and submitting on behalf of
David L. Smith

28 Second Street

Troy, NY 12180

(518) 274-5820
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PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This Memorandum of Law is submitted on behalf of defendants Timothy M. McGinn’s
and David L. Smith’s (hereinafter defendants) Motion for Stay of Discovery in this civil lawsuit.
The stay request is predicated upon the ongoing, active federal criminal investigation of the

defendants which arises out of precisely the same allegations contained the SEC complaint herein.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The relevant facts are fully set forth in the Affirmation in Support of Defendants’ Motion
to Stay Discovery of E. Stewart Jones, Jr., Esq. (hereinafter “Affirmation”), and the exhibits

annexed thereto. Those documents are incorporated by reference herein.

POINT I
A STAY OF DISCOVERY IN THE
INSTANT CIVIL LAWSUIT AGAINST
DEFENDANTS SHOULD BE GRANTED
As noted in the Attorney Affirmation, defendants are currently the targets of a criminal

investigation in the United States District Court of the Northern District of New York. Multiple
subpoenas for documents and testimony relating to the investigation have been issued by the U.S.
Attorney’s office investigating the case, and it is believed that a Grand Jury sits laying in wait for
an indictment to be handed down. The question is not if, but when, the defendants will be charged
criminally for the same conduct and transactions that are at issue in the instant SEC investigation

civilly. Due to the impending indictment, the identical and overlapping facts, law, and subject

matter of the civil and criminal investigations, and the absence of potential harm to the public or
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the SEC’s investigation, countered by defendants’ own vital Fifth Amendment rights against self-
incrimination, discovery in the instant civil action should be stayed.
a. This Court possesses the inherent power to stay an action

It is well-settled that while the stay of an action is not a constitutional right, such will be

granted when the interests of justice so require. United States v. Kordel, 397 U.S. 1 (1970); Kashi

v. Gratsos, 790 F. 2d 1050, 1057 (2d Cir. 1986). It is well within the inherent power of a federal

district court to stay an action in the exercise of its discretion. Landis v. North American Co., 299

U.S. 248 (1936); U.S. v. Private Sanitation Industry Assoc. Of Nassau/Suffolk, Inc., 811 F. Supp

802, 805 (E.D.N.Y. 1992). Courts are given such discretion because the failure to stay an action
has the potential to conflict with a party’s Fifth Amendment rights, extend criminal discovery
beyond the scope of FRCP § 16(b), reveal the defense theory in advance of trial, or otherwise

prejudice the criminal case unnecessarily. SEC v. Dresser, 628 F.2d 1368, 1376 (D.C. Cir. 1980).

In Arden Way, the court recognized the significance of a stay when constitutional rights
were potentially compromised, finding that “absent a showing of undue prejudice upon defendant
or interference with his constitutional rights,” there was no reason prevent plaintiff’s civil

proceeding to go forward. Arden Way Assoc. v. Boeksy, 660 F. Supp. 1494, 1497 (S.D.N.Y.

1987). Here, it is obvious that the defendants’ Fifth Amendment rights are at stake; if required to
testify before the SEC and hand over documents which also pertain to a criminal matter in which
they are being investigated, the very fabric of their constitutional rights, not to incriminate oneself,
will be undermined.

Defendant McGinn is the founder, chairman, secretary, and co-owner of McGinn, Smith &

Co., a broker-dealer service group located in Albany, NY; he also serves as treasurer and co-
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owner of McGinn Smith Advisors, a wholly owned subsidiary corporation of McGinn, Smith &
Co.. Defendant David L. Smith is the founder and president of McGinn, Smith & Co., and the
managing member of McGinn Smith Advisors. As noted in the affirmation, on April 20, 2010, the
SEC filed a complaint against defendants and their various business concerns alleging, among
other things, ongoing fraud and deception of investors. That same day, this Court issued an Order
to Show Cause, Temporary Retraining Order, and an Order Freezing Assets and Granting Other
Relief, which also set the dates for a preliminary injunction hearing and for the submission of
briefs. The SEC has since offered a consent order for this Court’s approval to extend the dates
found in the original Order (Exhibit A). On April 28, defendants were served with a Notice of
Deposition pursuant to the order, noticing defendants that their individual oral examinations
would take place on May 12-13, 2010. The following day, defendants were served with a First
Request for Production of Documents, asking them to produce documents relating to, inter alia,
the business and financial interests of and relating to McGinn, Smith & Co., its entities, and the
personal finances of defendants.

During the same time, if not before, the U.S. Attorney’s office for the North District of
New York launched a criminal investigations of defendants, raiding the defendants’ homes and
business properties in New York and Florida pursuant to search warrants issued in the Federal
District Court of the State of New York (Exhibit B). Several subpoenas have been issued for the
production of documents and for the compulsion of testimony to be brought before the Grand Jury
in the Northern District of New York in connection to the federal criminal investigation
(Affirmation p3).

b. The interests of justice require that a stay be granted in the instant civil proceeding
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In making a determination as to whether the interests of justice require a stay be granted,
the court is charged with balancing several factors, including: (1) the extent to which the issues in
the criminal case overlap with the civil case; (2) the status of the case, including whether the
defendants have been indicted; (3) plaintiff’s prejudice if delayed; (4) private interests of

defendants; (5) the court’s interests; and (6) the public interest. see Scipar Inc. v. Simses, 2007

WL 1814599 (W.D.N.Y. 2007); citing Volmar Distributors, Inc. v. The New York Post Co., Inc.,

152 F.R.D. 36 (S.D.N.Y. 1993); Arden Way Assoc., 660 F. Supp. at 1497. Applying the

foregoing principles to the facts of the care herein, it is apparent that a stay is warranted. Clearly,
as noted above in section a. and the Attorney Affirmation attached, there is no question that there
is an active, ongoing criminal investigation in the instant case.

Two main cases exist in which courts have determined that a stay of civil proceedings

pending the outcome of a criminal investigation: United States v. Certain Real Property and

Premises Known as 1344 Ridge Road , 751 F.Supp. 1060 (S.D.N.Y. 1989), and Brock v. Tolkow,

109 F.R.D. 116 (E.D.N.Y. 1985). In Brock, the court explained this “Hobson’s Choice” that a
party who is investigated criminally and asked to answer civilly on the same issues is faced with:

“[1]f the defendant are served with interrogatories in the

civil case, they must decide whether to respond or to assert

their rights under the Fifth Amendment. If they choose the former
course, they risk providing the government with leads or evidence
that may be used against them. If they choose the latter course, they
greatly increase the chance that they be found liable in a civil case
for substantial sums of money.”

Brock, 109 F.R.D. at 120; see also Certain Real Property, 751 F. Supp. At 1061.

As here, where no indictment has been returned but is very nearly on the horizon, to the

courts in Brock and Certain Real Property, it mattered not that the criminal investigations were in
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the investigatory stage. Rather, the standard for determining a stay when an individual is not yet
indicted was articulated as: “the Fifth Amendment privilege operates where the information
sought to be extracted presents “a realistic threat of incrimination” . . . as distinguished from a
‘mere imaginary possibility.’ . . .Thus, it is only when there is but a fanciful possibility of

299

prosecution that a claim of Fifth Amendment privilege is not well-taken’” Certain Real Property,

751 F. Supp 1063 (citations omitted).

Certainly the prosecution of defendants here is not a “mere imaginary possibility.” As
detailed in the attached Affirmation, a federal criminal investigation remains active and ongoing,
as expressly confirmed by Assistant U.S. Attorney Elizabeth Coombe. Further, when viewing the
allegations contained in the civil Complaint filed by the SEC, defendants, along with the “entities
they control,” have been accused of orchestrating the “ongoing fraud” of over 900 investors.
These types of allegations are familiar to the criminal courts of this State and District, and as this
Court is aware, carry with them very onerous criminal penalties upon conviction. On April 27,
2010, the Albany Times Union printed an article detailing a “series of raids in connection with the
criminal investigation of McGinn, Smith & Co.,” confirming the suspicion that law enforcement,
and not just the SEC, were actively investigating defendants’ business. (Exhibit B). Indeed, it is
public knowledge that subpoenas have been issued for documents and voluntary oral testimony to
be presented before a Grand Jury in Albany’s U.S. District Court. As noted in the Affirmation,
one or more attorneys who have been hired to represent employees of McGinn, Smith & Co. have
been informed by the U.S. Attorney’s office that a criminal investigation is underway and that the
defendants herein are the targets of that investigation.

Next, there is no question that the concerns of the criminal investigation, conducted by the
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U.S. Attorney’s office who is charged with prosecuting Federal Crimes, overlap with the subject
matter fo the SEC’s civil investigation. As noted by the court in Brock, a stay of civil proceedings
is most likely to be granted where civil and criminal actions involve the same subject matter, for
this very reason. Brock, 109 F.R.D. at 119.

Here, the complaint filed by the SEC details the alleged “ongoing fraud” that has been
perpetrated by defendants over the course of more than a decade (Exhibit A). It names several
entities wholly owned by the defendants and the subsidiaries of those entities, as having been used
to misrepresent and further the financial interests of the defendants. Specifically, the complaint
alleges that investor funds were secretly funneled into entities owned by defendants; these entities
were raided by federal criminal investigators in April. The complaint alleges that investors were
tricked into investing in a cruise enterprise in Florida; McGinn’s Florida company headquarters
was subject to a raid by criminal investigators. The SEC complaint alleges that defendants
received vast amounts of undisclosed “personal loans” from their entities and that entities paid for
various luxuries enjoyed by their families; the defendants’ family homes were raided and the
subject of search warrants in the instant ongoing criminal investigation.

Clearly, the subject matter, fact, and law at issue in the SEC complaint and investigation,
including the assets involved in the entirety of the alleged fraudulent transactions, are under
investigation and at issue in the federal criminal investigation against defendants. This is not
merely a case where a single investor is looking to hold defendants civilly responsible for a single
mishandled investment, and we seek to stay that action for a much broader criminal investigation
of just mere employees - no, the span and scope of both investigations are identical in nature,

involve the same documents and transactions, and is based solely on the first hand knowledge and
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business dealings of the defendants.

More specifically, the SEC’s and the U.S. Attorney’s interests are inextricably linked to
one another. Indeed, beyond their most basic connection as arms of the Federal Government, they
are further united in interest: the U.S. Attorney would of course want to obtain any factual
information it could that is gleaned from the course of the SEC’s civil lawsuit, including
discovery, and the SEC of course desires a successful criminal prosecution because of the
preclusive and binding effect it would have on the civil case. Thus, the SEC has every incentive
to assist the U.S. Attorney in its quest for criminal convictions, including through its civil
discovery. In short; absent a stay, the U.S. Attorney will have access to information it otherwise
would not due to the Fifth Amendment, and the SEC will gladly furnish said information because
of the benefits of criminal convictions.

Next, it is certain that the SEC will suffer no prejudice as the result of any stay in
discovery and likewise, neither will the public interest be placed in jeopardy. By Order of the
U.S. District Court of the Northern District of New York, defendants’ assets have been frozen, a
receiver assigned, and further preventative measures taken which assure that not only will
evidence pertaining to the SEC’s investigation not be destroyed, but defendant will not harm the
public in any way further than what is alleged in the complaint (Exhibits E, A).  The Brock
court noted that the fact a stay of discovery would cause “no serious damage to the public
interest” was significant, in that cases where “a tangible threat of immediate and serious harm to
the public at large” must be counterbalanced against the individual threat to a defendant’s Fifth
Amendment rights, often with the bar favoring heavily on the public interest. Brock, 109 F.R.D. at

119. Those concerns are moot however, where, as here, defendants are no longer doing business
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with investors, have been at the forefront of public scrutiny and its inherent outcry and exile for
some time, and their assets have been frozen. (see Exhibit B). Further, although the stay is likely
to cause some delay in the SEC’s pursuing its claim against defendants, this must be balanced
against the competing interests that are defendants’ Fifth Amendment rights. Courts have
acknowledged the utmost importance of a citizen’s right against self-incrimination; where as here,
they are a very real interest at stake, they must be of chief concern to this Court. Certain Real
Property, 751 F.Supp at 1063 (“While a stay. . . may cause some inconvenience and delay. . .
‘protection of defendant[s’]’ constitutional right against self-incrimination is the more important
consideration”).

CONCLUSION

For the reasons set forth herein, defendants’ Motion to Stay Discovery in the instant civil
action should be granted; further, pending the court’s decision on the instant motion, the oral
examination of defendants by the SEC and the SEC’s demand for the production of documents
should be stayed. Finally, the consent order entered into by the defendants without the benefit of
counsel should be denied.

DATED: May 21, 2010

s/ E. Stewart Jones, Jr.
E. Stewart Jones, Jr.
Bar Roll No: 103064
E. STEWART JONES, PLLC
Attorney for Timothy M. McGinn and
on behalf of David L. Smith
Office and P.O. Address
28 Second Street
Troy, NY 12180
(518) 274-5820
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,
10 Civ. 457 GLS-DRH

Plaintiff,
V.
ATTORNEY AFFIRMATION
MCcGINN, SMITH & CO., INC., IN SUPPORT OF MOTION
MCcGINN, SMITH ADVISORS, LLC, FOR STAY OF DISCOVERY

MCcGINN, SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORP.,
FIRST ADVISORY INCOME NOTES, LLC,
FIRST EXCELSIOR INCOME NOTES, LLC
FIRST INDEPENDENT INCOME NOTES, LLC,
THIRD ALBANY INCOME NOTES, LLC,
TIMOTHY M. McGINN, AND
DAVID L. SMITH,

Defendants, and
LYNN A. SMITH

Relief Defendant.

E. STEWART JONES, JR., ESQ., under penalty of perjury, affirms as follows:

I am an attorney at law duly licensed to practice in the State of New York, and [ am
associated with the law firm of E. STEWART JONES, PLLC, the attorney for the above-
mentioned defendant TIMOTHY M. McGINN, and as such I am fully familiar with all the facts
and circumstances in this case.

1. This affirmation is being made upon information and belief, except as to those matters
wherein it states that your affirmant has actual knowledge thereof.

2. I make this affirmation in support of defendants’ TIMOTHY M. McGINN and DAVID
L. SMITH motion (a) for a limited stay, as further described in the attached memorandum of law,
of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s (hereinafter “SEC”) investigation of the

defendants, specifically with respect to the Notice of Deposition dated May 17, 2010 and First
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Request for Production of Documents to Defendants Timothy M. McGinn and David L. Smith
dated April 29, 2010; and (b) to stay the Notice of Deposition’s oral examination of defendants
TIMOTHY M. McGINN and DAVID L. SMITH, currently scheduled to occur May 25, 2010
and May 26, 2010, pending the Court’s decision on the underlying motion herein as detailed
below; and (c) to stay the First Request for Production of Documents to Defendants Timothy M.
McGinn and David L. Smith, that was returnable on or before May 5, 2010, pending this Court’s
decision on the underlying motion herein as detailed below.

This Motion is being joined in by William Dreyer, Esq., who represents MR. SMITH.

RELEVANT FACTS

3. On April 20, 2010, the SEC commenced the underlying action by filing a Complaint,
Order to Show Cause, and other papers attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” which alleged among
other things, the commission of fraud, misrepresentations and omissions of fact, and illegal
transfer of funds on behalf of that defendants TIMOTHY M. McGINN and DAVID L. SMITH
and McGinn, Smith entities (hereinafter “the complaint™).

4. On April 20, 2010, the Court issued an Order to Show Cause, Temporary Retraining
Order, and an Order Freezing Assets and Granting Other Relief (hereinafter “the Order”), which
also set the dates for a preliminary injunction hearing and for the submission of briefs. The
Order is attached hereto as Exhibit “B.”

5. A Consent Order Extending the dates found in the Order to Show Cause, dated May 7,
2010, is currently pending before this Court, attached hereto as Exhibit “C.”

6. On or about April 21, 2010, federal agents from the FBI and IRS conducted a series of

raids in connection with a Federal criminal investigation of the defendants and their brokerage
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firm, McGinn, Smith & Co. See the attached article dated April 27, 2010 from the Albany
newspaper, the Times Union, attached hereto as Exhibit “D.”

7. At or about the same time, it is known by this Affirmant that the U.S. Attorney’s Office
in the U.S. District Court of the Northern District of New York, who is charged with prosecuting
federal crimes, issued multiple Subpoenas calling for files, documents and oral testimony to be
brought before the Grand Jury of the U.S. District Court in Albany. Affirmant has confirmed this
information with Assistant United States Attorney Elizabeth Coombe.

8. Further, it is understood that more than one attorney who has been hired to represent
employees or previous employees of McGinn, Smith & Co. have been informed by the U.S.
Attorney’s office that a criminal investigation is underway, that there are one or more "subjects"
of the investigation, and that the targets of that investigation are TIMOTHY M. McGINN and
DAVID L. SMITH, the applicants herein.

9. By the SEC’s Notice of Deposition, attached hereto as Exhibit “E,” was served on
defendants on May 17, 2010 pursuant to the Order, depositions by oral examination have been
scheduled for defendants in this matter on May 25-26, 2010.

10. The oral examination of defendants TIMOTHY M. McGINN and DAVID L. SMITH
in the instant civil proceeding at this time, when defendants are under federal criminal
investigation based upon the same set of facts and issues, creates an untenable choice for the
defendants which courts have chosen to mitigate by staying the civil proceeding, as is more fully
discussed in the accompanying memorandum of law.

11. By the SEC’s First Request for Production of Documents to Defendants Timothy M.

McGinn and David L. Smith (hereinafter “Request for Production’), which was served on
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defendants on April 29, 2010 pursuant to the Order, defendants TIMOTHY M. McGINN and
DAVID L. SMITH have been asked to produce documents relating to, inter alia, business and
personal transactions and financial interests relating to McGinn, Smith Entities and defendants
TIMOTHY M. McGINN and DAVID L. SMITH. Attached hereto as Exhibit “F” is the Request
for Production.

12. Requiring defendants TIMOTHY M. McGINN and DAVID L. SMITH to produce
such documents in the instant civil proceeding at this time, when defendants are under federal
criminal investigation based upon the same set of facts and issues, creates an untenable choice
for the defendants which courts have chosen to mitigate by staying the civil proceeding, as is
more fully discussed in the accompanying memorandum of law.

INSTANT MOTION

13. For reasons set forth in the accompanying memorandum of law, the SEC’s
investigation of defendants TIMOTHY M. McGINN and DAVID L. SMITH should be stayed to
the extent it requires defendants to give oral testimony before the SEC and produce
documentation regarding facts and issues currently under federal criminal investigation.

14. With regard to the requested stay, courts have recognized that simultaneous criminal
and civil matters based upon the same facts and issues places an individual in the untenable
position of having to decide between exercising their Fifth Amendment rights at the expense of
civil exposure and adverse inferences, or foregoing their Fifth Amendment rights at the risk of
providing prosecutors with incriminating leads or evidence that may be used in a criminal case
against them. As further set forth in the accompanying memorandum of law, while the

Constitution does not mandate stays when parallel investigations are ongoing, courts are given
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the discretion to grant stays because failing to do so could, inter alia, undermine the protections
inherent in a party’s Fifth Amendment and Due Process rights.

15. As set forth in the accompanying memorandum, courts have identified a number of
factors in determining whether to issue a stay of civil proceedings when there is a parallel
criminal investigation or prosecution. Applying those factors to the case at bar, a stay is
warranted.

16. More specifically as set forth in the accompanying memorandum of law, a stay is
warranted here because: both investigations involve the same issues and subject matter; both
investigations are being conducted by a government entity; defendants are not seeking a stay of
the entire case; the criminal investigation can advance the same interests as the SEC’s
investigation; the Fifth Amendment is the more important consideration vis-a-vis any harm that
would come from a stay; there is no threat of harm - imminent, serious or irreparable - to the
public that would result if a stay is granted; and the SEC can always move to vacate the stay is
warranted by a change in circumstances.

17. It should be noted that the remaining factor which is to be considered by the Court is
whether an indictment is pending. While there is not yet an indictment in this case, there is a
known, active investigation in the United States District Court of the Northern District of New
York, and several subpoenas have been issued for the procurement of documents and testimony
that were returnable in that court on Thursday, May 6, 2010 and on succeeding dates. Courts
have recognized that a criminal investigation is sufficient to warrant a stay and, taken in
conjunction with the other supporting factors listed herein, a stay is clearly warranted.

WHEREFORE, your affirmant respectfully requests that the Court:
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1. Stay the SEC’s investigation insofar as it requires the defendants, TIMOTHY M.
MCcGINN and DAVID L. SMITH to provide oral testimony before the SEC;

2. Stay the SEC’s investigation insofar as it requires the defendants, TIMOTHY M.
MCcGINN and DAVID L. SMITH to produce documents that may be of interest in the ongoing
criminal investigation against them;

3. Stay the oral examination of defendants TIMOTHY M. McGINN and DAVID L.
SMITH, currently scheduled for May 25, 2010 and May 26, 2010, pending the Court’s decision
on the underlying motion herein as detailed below; and

4.Stay the requirement that Defendants, TIMOTHY M. McGINN and DAVID L. SMITH
produce the documents request in the Request for Documents, pending this Court’s decision on
the underlying motion herein as detailed below.

5. Deny the SEC’s request to further extend the dates contained in the court’s Order to
Show Cause.

DATED: May 21, 2010
s/ E. Stewart Jones, Jr.

E. STEWART JONES, JR.
Bar Roll No.: 103064
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,

. Loy 457 ebS|RFT

McGINN, SMITH & CO., INC,, :
McGINN, SMITH ADVISORS, LLC, : COMPLAINT
McGINN, SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORP., :
FIRST ADVISORY INCOME NOTES, LLC,

ledf 2003- 2pc4 FIRST EXCELSIOR INCOME NOTES, LLC, :

Fall 2005 FIRST INDEPENDENT INCOME NOTES, LLC, : JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
THIRD ALBANY INCOME NOTES, LLC, -
TIMOTHY M. MCGINN, AND
DAVID L. SMITH,
Defendants, and

LYNN A. SMITH,
Relief Defendant.

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) for its complaint
against McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc. (“MS & Co.”), McGinn, Smith Advisors, LLC (“MS
Advisors”), McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp. (“MS Capital”), First Advisory Income
Notes, LLC (“FAIN"), First Excelsior Income Notes, LLC (“FEIN"), First Independent Income
Notes, LLC (“FIIN™), Third Albany Income Notes, LLC (“TAIN") (FIIN, FEIN, FAIN and

TAIN are referred to collectively herein as the “Four Funds™), Timothy M. McGinn (“McGinn”),
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and David L. Smith (“Smith”), Defendants, and Lynn A. Smith, Relief Defendant, alleges as
follows:
SUMMARY OF ALLEGATIONS

1. The Commission brings this action to stop an ongoing fraud orchestrated by
defendants McGinn, Smith and entities they control. Since 2003, McGinn and Smith have used
MS & Co., a registered broker-dealer and investment adviser, MS Advisors, an investment
advisor, and MS Capital, as well as dozens of affiliated entities they own or control (collectively,
“the McGinn Smith Entities”), to raise over $136 million in more than 20 unregistered debt
offerings. The debt offerings, including the Four Funds and numerous trust entities (the
“Trusts™), have been sold to more than 900 investors. The offering fraud already has caused
significant investor losses, and this emergency action is intended to stop the fraud and preserve
the status quo for the benefit of the victims.

2. McGinn, Smith, MS & Co., MS Advisors and MS Capital deceived investors in the
Four Funds. They told investors that their hard-earned money would be invested and that the
profits would depend on the spread between the cost of the investmeﬁt and the rate of return.
Instead, the Defendants secretly funneled investor money to entities they owned or controlled,
| even though this was not permitted by offering materials. Defendan’Fs concealed from investors
the truth about the Four Funds, including the fact that investor money was being routed to in-
house entities controlled by Smith and McGinn and to other non-public and illiquid investments,
and that these actions were having a disastrous impact on the investors.

3.  In addition to the Four Funds, Smith and McGinn directed a series of smaller-scale
offerings, primarily through vaﬁous Trusts. The Trusts also were used as vehicles to funnel

investor funds to various companies controlled by Smith and McGinn, contrary to the terms of
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the Private Placement Memoranda (PPMs). Investor money raised in offerings for the Trusts
was routinely diverted to other McGinn Smith entities as liquidity needs of the enterprise
dictated. The Defendants also used offering proceeds to make unauthorized investments in and
unsecured loans to speculative, financially troubled McGinn Smith Entities, to make MS & Co.’s
payroll, to pay commission and transaction fees to McGinn Smith Entities, to make interest
payments to investors in other éntities, to support McGinn’s and Smith’s lifestyle, and to procure
strippers for a “sexually themed” cruise.

4. The Defendants’ misrepresentations and omissions have had a devastating impact
on the investors. In 2009, Smith and McGinn received e-mails telling them the investors were
wondering “if they’ve bought into a Ponzi Scheme,” and a MS&Co. broker reported to McGinn
and Smith that there are “many people who refer to our deals as a Ponzi Scheme.”

5. As of September 2009, it appears that investors in the four Funds were owed at
least $84 million, that the Four Funds had less than $500,000 in cash on hand, and that their
remaining assets were worth only a small fraction of the amount owed to investors. Similarly,
the Trusts have a negative equity of approximately $18 million, and have never had the ability to
pay the interest rates promoted to investors and also pay back principal. Nonetheless, McGinn
and Smith have continued to raise money from investors, using similar misrepresentations, as
recently as December 2009. During the first few months of 2010, contrary to representations to
invesfors, McGinn and Smith have continued to drain what little cash remains through payment
of “fees” to themselves.

6.  Inorder to halt the ongoing fraud, maintain the status quo and preserve any assets
for injured investors, the Commission seeks emergency relief, including an asset freeze; a

receiver over the McGinn Smith Entities; expedited discovery; and verified accountings.
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VIOLATIONS
By virtue of the conduct alleged herein:

7.  MS & Co., MS Advisors, MS Capital, McGinn and Smith, directly or indirectly,
singly or in concert, have engaged, are engaging, and unless restrained and enjoined will
continue to engage in acts, practices, schemes and courses of business that constitute violations
of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”) [15 U.S.C. § 77q(2)] and
Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) {15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)]
and Rule 10b-5 thereunder{17 C.F.R.§ 240.10b-5];

8. MS & Co., MS Advisors, McGinn and Smith directly or indirectly, singly or in
concert, have engaged, are engaging, and unless restrained and enjoined will continue to engage
in acts, practices, schemes and courses of business that constitute violations of Sections 206(1),
206(2) and 206(4) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (the“Advisers Act”) [15 U.S.C. §§
80b-6(1)(2) and (6)] and Rule 206(4)-8 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §275.206(4)-8];

9. FAIN, FEIN, FIIN and TAIN have violated, are violating, and, unless restrained
and enjoined, will continue to violate Section 7(a) of the Investment Company Actof 1940
(“Company Act”) [15 U.S.C. § 80a-7]; |

10. MS & Co., MS Capital, FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, and TAIN, McGinn and Smith
directly or indire;ctly, singly or in concert, have violated, are.violating, and unless restrained and
enjoined will continue to violate Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act[15 U.S.C. § 77e];

11. MS & Co. violated, is violating and, unless restrained and enjoined, will continue
to violate Section 15(c) (1) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78(o)(1)] and Rule 10b-3 [17

C.F.R. § 240.10b-3], and McGinn and Smith have aided and abetted such violation; and
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12. Lynn Smith, as relief defendant, has received and retained ill gotten gains from

defendants’ fraud.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

13, The Commission brings this action pursuant to the authority conferred upon it by
Section 20(b) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(b)], Section 21(d)(1) of the Exchange Act
[15U.S.C. § 78u(d)(1)], Section 209(d) of the Advisers Act, {15 U.S.C. §80b-9(d)] and Section
42(d) of the Company Act [15 U.S.C. §80a-41(d)] seeking a final judgment: (i) restraining and
permanently enjoining the defendants from engaging in the acts, practices and courses of
business respectfully alleged against them herein; (ii) ordering defendants to disgorge any ill-
gotten gains and to pay prejudgment interest thereon, jointly and severally; (iii) prohibiting
McGinn from acting as an officer or director of any issuer that has a class of securities registered
pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §781] or that is required to file reports
pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §780(d)]; and @iv) imposiﬁg civil
money penalties on all defendants pursuant to Section 20(d) of the Securities Act [15US.C. §
77t(d)], Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u(d)(3)], Section 209(e) of the
Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-9(e)], and Section 42(e) of the Company Act [15 U.S.C. § 80a-
41(e)].

14. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Sections 20(b) and 22(a) of
the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 77t(b) and 77v(a)], Sections 21(e) and 27 of the Exchange Act
[15 U.S.C. §§ 78u(e) and 78aa], Sections 42 and 44 of the Company Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 80a-41
and 80a-43] and Sections 209 and 214 of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 80b-9 and 80b-14]..

15. Venue lies in the Northern District of New York, pursuant to Section 22 (a) of the

Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77v(a)], Section 27 of the Exchange Act [15U.S.C. § 78aa), Section
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44 of the Company Act [15 U.S.C. § 80a-43] and Section 214 of the Advisers Act [15US.C.§
80b-14]. The Defendants, directly or indirectly, singly or in concert, have made use of the means
and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, or of the mails, in connection with the transactions,
acts, practices, and courses of business alleged herein. Certain of these transactions, acts,
pracﬁces, and courses of business occurred in the Northern District of New York. For exémple,
the main offices of MS & Co., MS Advisors, MS Cépital, the Four Funds, and the various Trusts
were located in Albany, New York and all of the Defendants, including McGinn and Smith,
transacted business at those offices.
DEFENDANTS

16.  Timothy M. McGinn, age 62, is a resident of Schenectady, New York. He is the
chairman, secretary, and co-owner of MS & Co. as well as treasurer and indirect co-owner of MS
Adbvisors. From 2003 to 2006, McGinn served as Chief Executive Officer of Integrated Alarm
Services Group, Inc. (“IASG”), a publicly traded company. He ieft IASG and fetumed to MS
& Co. in the fall of 2006.

17.  David L. Smith, age 65, is a resident of Saratoga Springs, New York. He is the
president of MS & Co. and the managing member of MS Advisors. Until 2007, Smith also was
the chief compliance c;fﬁcer of MS & Co. Smith owns about 50% of MS & Co. and about 50%

of MS Advisors.

18.  McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc. (“MS & Co.”), a registered broker-dealer and New
York corporation founded in 1981 by Smith and McGinn, has its principal place of business at
99 Pine Street, Albany, NY It is currently owned by Smith (50%), McGinn (30%), another
partner (“Partner 3”) (about15%) and a fourth partner (“Partner 4”) (about 5%). In April 2009_,

MS & Co. registered with the Commission as an investment adviser, and replaced MS Advisors
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as the adviser to the Funds. Throughout 2009, MS & Co. had about 53 employees, including
about 35 registered representatives, and branch offices in Clifton Park, Manhattan and Boca
Raton. On December 24, 2009, MS & Co. filed a partial BD-W and has been winding down
much of its broker-dealer business. On March 9, 2010, it also withdrew its investment adviser
registration.

19.  McGinn Smith Advisors, LLC (“MS Advisors™) is a New York corporation with
its principal place of business at 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York. MS Advisors is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of McGinn, Smith Holdings LLC, which is owned 50% by Smith, 30% by

- McGinn and 20% by MS Partners. MS Advisors was registered as an investment advisor with
the Commission from January 3, 2006 to April 24, 2009. It was the investment adviser to all of
th;.e Funds until April 2009, when it was replaced by MS & Co.

20. McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp, (“MS Capital”) is a New York
corporation with its principal place of business at 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York. It is owned

_ by MS Holdings LLC (52%), McGinn (24%) and Smith (24%). 1t is the indenture trustee for the
Funds and the trusteé for all the Trusts created between 2006 and 2009. Smith is president and
McGinn is chairman of the board.

21.  First Independent Income Notes LLC (“FIIN”); First Equity Income Notes
LLC (“FEIN”); First Albany Income Notes LLC (“FAIN”) and Third Albany Income
Notes LLC (“TAIN”) are New York corporations and unregistered investment companies with

their principal places of business at 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York. They are wholly-owned

by MS Advisors.
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RELIEF DEFENDANT

22. Lynn A. Smith, age 64, is the wife of David Smith and a resident of Sarato ga
Springs, New York.

FACTS

23.  McGinn and Smith founded MS & Co. in 1980 and the firm registered as a broker-
dealer in 1981. McGinn sold 40% of his interest in MS & Co to Partner 3 in 2003 when he
became the chief executive officer of IASG, but he returned to MS & Co. in 2006. Since then,
he and Smith have actively controlled virtually every aspect of the McGinn Smith Entities’
operations.

The Four Funds

24.  Between September 2003 and October 2005, MS Advisors formed FAIN, FEIN,
FIIN and TAIN. MS Advisors held 100% of the membership interest in each Fund and was their
sole managing member. MS Advisors also served as investment adviser to the Four Funds.
Smith was responsible for the majority of the investment decisions for the Funds. Among other
functions, McGinn served as signatory on behalf of various McGinn Smith Entities that received
loans from the Funds.

25. MS & Co. acted as the placement agent for debt offerings by the Four Funds,
raising a total of approximately $90 million. MS Capital served as Trustee and Servicing Agent
for each of the Four Funds. The Funds each had between 150 and 300 investors.

26. Each Fund invested more than 40% of its assets in securities. MS & Co. was
required to, but did not, register each of the Funds as investment companies.

27.  The terms of the offerings by the Four Funds, as disclosed in their “Confidential

Private Placement Memoranda (“PPMs”), are summarized below:
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OFFERING | DATE OF PPM AGGREGATE | TYPES OF NOTES SOLD
PRINCIPAL
AMOUNT
FIIN Sept. 15, 2003 $20 million 5% Secured Senior Notes due 2004
7.5% Secured Senior Subordinated
Notes due 2008

10.25% Secured Junior Notes due 2008
FEIN Jan, 16, 2004 $20 million 5% Secured Senior Notes due 2005

1 7.5% Secured Senior Subordinated
Notes due 2007

10.25% Secured Junior Notes due 2009
TAIN Nov. 1, 2004 $30 million 5.75% Secured Senior Notes due 2005
7.75% Secured Senior Subordinated
Notes due 2007

10.25% Secured Junior Notes due 2009
FAIN Oct. 1, 2005 $20 million 6% Secured Senior Notes due 2005
7.75% Secured Senior Subordinated
Notes due 2007

10.25% Secured Junior Notes due 2010

28.  Each note holder was entitled to quarterly interest payments. The Secured Senior
Subordinated and Secured Junior Note holders’ rights to payments Wére subordinated to the
rights of the Senior Secured Note holders.

29. The PPMs contained esseritially identicai disclosures, terms and conditions. They
were prepared at Smith’s direction and were reviewed by him for accuracy prior to
commencement of each offering. Each PPM disclosed that the issuer was:

formed to identify and acquire various public and/or private investments, which

may include, without limitation, debt securities, collateralized debt obligations,

bonds, equity securities, trust preferreds, collateralized stock, convertible stock,

bridge loans, leases, mortgages, equipment leases, securitized cash flow
instruments, and any other investments that may add value to our portfolio. . . .

30. Although the PPMs include broad disclosures about the risks of investing in the
Four Funds, the disclosures regarding potential affiliated transactions, aside from payment of fees
and commissions to affiliates, was limited to the following language:

[The Fund] may acquire Investments from our managing member or an affiliate of
our managing member that has purchased the Investments..If the Investment is
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purchased from our managing member or any affiliate, we will not pay above the
price paid by our managing member or such affiliate for the Investment, other
than to reimburse our managing member or such affiliate for its costs and any
discounts that it may have received by virtue of a special arrangement or
relationship. In other words, if we purchase an Investment from our managing
member or any of its affiliates, we will pay the same price for the Investment that
we would have paid if we had purchased the Investment directly. We may also
purchase securities from issuers in offerings for which McGinn, Smith & Co., is
acting as underwriter or placement agent and for which McGinn, Smith & Co.

will receive a commission.

31.  The PPMs did not disclose that the Funds would make any loans to, transfers, or
investments in, affiliated entities.

32. The Funds increasingly made unauthorized loans and transfers to and investments
in affiliated McGinn Smith Entities. By September 2009, approximately one-half of all Funds
assets had been loaned to or invested in affiliated, often cash poor and financially desperate
McGinn Smith Entities. The PPMs suggested that the Funds were created to identify and invest
in a wide spectrum of public and private investments that would “add value to our portfolio.” In
fact, the Funds served the more limited purpose of loaning or investing the majority of their
Funds in financially troubled McGinn Smith Entities. Only about $3.6 million of the

approximately $106 million raised by the Four Funds was invésted in liquid, publicly traded

companies.

33. The PPMs did not disclose that most of the McGinn Smith Entities were illiquid,
had little or no revenues, or were in poor financial condition when they received the proceeds
from the Four Fund offerings. The investments appear to have been preceded by little due
diligence (none of which was done by persons independent of MS & Co.). The investments were
generally dictated by liquidity needs of the McGinn Smith Entities.

34. For example, between 2005 and 2007, MS Advisors caused three of the Funds to

loan nearly $8 million to alseT IP, a start-up entity partly owned and managed by Partner 3. At '

10
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least $700,000 of those loans was immediately transferred to Partner 3 as salary. AléeT never
made a penny, and never repaid any of the loans. By December 2007, an internal MS & Co.
email shows that the chief financial officer placed the value of the Funds’ loans to alseT at zero.
Nonetheless, MS Advisors caused two of the Funds to “loan” alseT an additional $250,000 in
February 2008, so that alseT could make additional payments to certain individuals.

35. By no later than 2006, as the Defendants knew or recklessly disregarded that the
Four Funds could not redeem investor notes when they became due. For example, on December
21, 2006, an MS & Co. employee sent an email to Smith telling him that a TAIN investor wanted
to redeem $100,000 in TAIN notes .du¢ December 15, 2006 and purchase $100,000 in one of the
Trusts (TDM 9.25%). Smith replied that the broker “needs to replace the $100,000 before doing
the trade.” He continued: “I am running on fumes with all of these redemptions and cannot
afford any more.”

36. By the end of 2007, each of the Funds had already paid .out millions more than the
Funds had received in iﬂcome from investments. As of September 30, 2009, since inception the
Funds had revenues of only $12.9 million and spent a total of $37 million, for a combined total

loss from operations of $24 million.

37. By the end of 2007, the Funds’ assets were worth a fraction of the amount owed to
investors. According to an analysis in December 2007 by MS & Co.’s then-chief financial
ofﬁcer, the combined “book value” of the Funds was then only $69,384,870 compared to total
notes payable of $86,046,000. Moreover, the CFO calculated that the “net realizable” amount in
the Funds combined as only $37,160,299 , nearly $48.9 million less than the amount owed to

investors. Nonetheless, the Funds continued to raise money from investors without disclosing

these facts.
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Additional Misrepresentations and Omissions
38. On January 13, 2005, Smith wrote to a prospective investor that the purpose of TAIN

“is to make investments, primarily in the form of secured loans, to private and public entities for
purposes that include acquisition, equipment purchases, receivable financing and general corporate
growth.” At the time Smith wrote this letter, TAIN had made three investments. Only one of those
three investments was secured, a loan for only $830,000 out of a total of $13.1 million in
outstanding investments.

39.  Smith steered another investor away from investing in blue chip stocks like General
Electric as too risky, and told him that the Fund private placements were safer investments.

40. On July 6, 2004, an MS & Co. broker told a prospective investor that:

The [FEIN] Notes represent a basket of asset backed securities with substantial

cash flow, a history of performance and limited liquidity in the marketplace. The

portfolio includes securities from both the public and private sector. Asset classes

consist of bonds, notes, preferred stock, leases, mortgages, limited partnerships,

and securitized cash flow instruments. Qur most active market of ideas comes

from small private placements ($25 - $50 million) offered by investment banks

primarily to institutional investors. We take comfort in these ideas due to the fact

that these offerings are usually proceeded [sic] with substantial due diligence,

scrutinized by product and industry professionals, and underwritten by top-tier

investment banking firms with an ongoing capability to assist with additional

capital if necessary. . . . I feel this investment is a great way for you to eam an

attractive yield while minimizing risk.

41. In fact, the “basket” of securities in which FEIN invested consisted mostly of
promissory notes from MS & Co. affiliates that did not have “substantial cash flow™ or “a history
of performance.” There is no evidence that any of the investments in FEIN resulted from “small
private placements . . . offered by investment banks primarily to institutional investors”. There is

no evidence of any “due diligence,” “scrutin(y] by product and industry professionals,” or

underwriting by “top-tier investment banking firms” for any of the investments made by the Four

Funds at any time.
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42. Inaddition, MS & Co. did not provide other investors with the relevant PPM prior to
their investments.

43.  In order to maintain sufficient monies in the Funds to continue to make interest
payments, MS and Co. encouraged investors to rollover their notes when they became due. Asa

result, Defendants were able to use what was, in effect, prinicipal, to continue to make periodic

interest payments.

Four Funds Restructuring
44, By as early as 2007, McGinn and Smith generally refused to honor investors’

requests for the return of principal at the maturity of the notes, unless the customer’s broker was
able to find a new investor to replace the outgoing investor.

45. In January 2008, Smith sent a letter to certain Fund investors stating that the Funds
had run into difficulty, which he falsely and misleadingly blamed as “primarily on liquidity”
caused by the subprime crisis. In April 2008, Smith sent a second letter informing Fund
investors that the problems cited in the January letter have “become more acute” and that,
because two investments had eliminated their dividends or ceased distributions, the Funds were
“forced” to eliminate the interest payments to Secured Junior Notes holders for the quarter. The
letter also noted that MS Advisors had been advised by counsel that “distributions at this time
quite probably reflect a return of capital and not interest, and therefore distributions at this time
might be considered an invasion of principal due to the Senior and Senior Subordinated Note
holders. This is a result of not knowing how and where to price our investments in these very
illiquid markets.”

46. In October 2008, Smith sent a letter to all Four Funds’ note holders that falsely and

misleadingly blamed the financial condition of the Funds on, among other things, the “current
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condition of the financial credit markets” and “financial crisis.” It further stated that “the lack of
liquidity in the credit markets . . . is the major issue that impacts your investment in the {Funds}.”
47.  These statements by Smith were false or misleading. The letters did not mention
that affiliates of MS & Co., many of which were insolvent, owed the Funds tens of millions of
dollars. These letters also omitted the material information that the value of the Funds’ assets
was only 50 % or less of the amount owed investors, and falsely suggested that note holders had
a reasonable prospect of eventually receiving their principal, pursuant to the restructuring plans.
48.  The purported restructuring plan extended the maturity dates of the notes, some
until 2023, and unilaterally reduced interest payments for all the note tranches. Since the 2008

restructuring, MS Advisors has made only reduced interest payments to the Secured Senior Note

holders.
49.  Smith also misrepresented that MS & Co. and the McGinn Smith Entities would be

making their own “sacrifices” and would “forfeit” all annual fees and commissions as part of the
note restructuring to “improve liquidity.” In fact, MS & Co. received approximately $700,000 in
fees in 2009 and $275,000 in fees in 2010, after this letter was sent.

50. Notwithstanding the insolvency of the Funds, MS & Co. continued to sell and
rollover investors’ notes in these Funds, including junior notes. Intemal MS & Co. documents
show new and rollover investments, including investments by customers of Smith, of at least
$736,500 in 2008 and $130,500 in 2009. The firm apparently used these new investments in part

to permit certain preferred investors to cash out.

51.  Despite the dire condition of the Funds, Smith and McGinn and MS Advisors

continued to divert the remaining moneys in the Funds to other financially troubled McGinn
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Smith Entities, such as Cruise Charter Ventures LLC (“CCV”) and TDM Luxury Cruise Trust 07
(“TDM Luxury”).

52. The PPMs also stated that the notes were being offered only to “accredited
investors.” By MS & Co.’s own records, however, the Four Funds each had many unaccredited
investors. According to MS & Co.’s records, as of March 20, 2006, FAIN had 30 unaccredited
investors; FEIN had 46 unaccredited investors; FIIN had 31 unaccredited investors; and TAIN
had 75 unaccredited investors.

THE TRUST OFFERINGS

53. Between 2006 and 2009; MS & Co. acted as placement agent for: four Firstline Jr.
and Sr. Trusts 07 offerings (“Firstline Trusts ), TDM Cable Trust 06 (“TDM Cable 06”),TDM
Luxury Cruise Trust 07 (“TDM Cruise”), TDM Verifier Trust 07 (“Verifier 07”), TDM Verifier
Trust 08 (“Verifier 08”); Cruise Charter Venture Trust 08 (“CCV Trust”), Fortress Trust 08
(“Fortress Trust”), Integrated Excellence Jr. and Sr. Trusts 08, TDM Cable Trust 08; TDM
Verifier Trust 09; TDMM Benchmark Trust 09 (“Benchmark 09”), TDMM Cable Jr. and Sr.
Trusts 09 (“TDMM Cable 09”), TDM Veriﬁer_Trust 07R; and TDM Verifier Trust 08R and
other offerings, including affiliate McGinn Smith Transaction Funding Corp. (“MSTE”).

54. The Trusts issued one or more tranches of notes and promoted interest rates ranging
from 7.75 % to13% per annum. Maturity dates varied from approximately 15 months to five years
from the date of the offering.

55. Many of the Trusts were created to loan the offering proceeds, minus placement agent
fees, to another McGinn Smith Entity (“the Conduit Entity”), which would then use those funds,
minus substantial additional fees, to purchase specific contracts or receivables from a third entity,

such as contracts for burglar alarm services or “triple play” (broadband, cable and telephone)
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services, or luxury cruise charters. The Trusts were generally left with only a promissory note and a
“security” interest in the assets to be purchased by the Conduit Entity.

56. The Declaration of Trust typically defined “Permitted Investments” to mean a
“promissory note (“the Note”) evidencing a loan from the Trust to [the particular Conduit Entity].
In addition, to the extent not employed for the loan from the Trust to [the Conduit Entity], the
Declaration permitted temporary investments limited to (1) certificates of deposit; (2) regularly
traded short term AAA rated debt obligations; or (3) U.S. Treasury obligations.

The PPMs Misled Investors As to The True Purpose of the Trusts

57. The true purpose of the Trusts was to structure a series of transactions that would
allow various McGinn Smith Entities to siphon off millions of dollars in transaction fees and
commissions and to serve the interest of McGinn Smith Entities, not the Trust investors. MS &
Co. extracted enormous fees from these Trust deals, which were not clearly disclosed in the PPMs.
The Trusts typically paid placement agent fees to MS & Co. of 5% to 9.5%. When the Trusts
transferred funds to the Conduit Entity, that entity paid large fees to MS & Co. that were variously
characterized as, among other things, “trust administration fees,” “acquisition costs,” “investment
banking fees,” “legal fees,” and “due diligence fees.” Those fees were sometimes as much as 20%
or more of the gross proceeds of the offerinig.

58. Although many of these fees were disclosed in the Trust i’PMs, the PPMs failed to
disclose that certain of these fees, commissions or transaction costs overstated the true market value
of the services performed, were unnecessary or were paid for services not performed or not
performed with the customary degree of professional care and .due diligence. |

59. The PPMs also failed to disclose that, contrary to the terms of the Trust PPMs,

large portions of the proceeds would be diverted to financially struggling McGinn Smith Entities,
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commingled with the offering proceeds of other Trusts, used to pay interest and principal to
investors in other Trusts and to keep the financially failing McGinn Smith fraud scheme afloat.
60. While the Trust PPMs often disclosed that there “was a high degree of risk”
associated with the investment, the PPMs failed to disclose that it was virtually certain that the
Trusts would not be able to meet their obligations to pay the promised interest payments or to
Tepay principal, given the large percentage of proceeds siphoned off in commissions and
transaction fees by McGinn Smith Entities before any investments were made, combined with

unauthorized loans to affiliated entities.

61. McGinn and Smith have fraudulently maintained the illusion of success by funding
interest payments with principal raised in other Trust offerings, at the expense of these investors.
The following examples demonstrate how the Trusts have been used to benefit the McGinn

Smith Entities, at the expense of Trust investors.

Benchmark 09 Trust PPM Misrepresented How Proceeds Would Be Used
62. On about July 27, 2009, MS & Co. launched an offering for the Benchmark 09

Trust. The PPM states that approximately $1,950,000 of the $3 million raised would be Ioaned
to TDMM Cable Funding, which would use the loan proceeds to purchase the operating assets
and “triple play” contracts of Benchmark LLC. TDMM Cable Funding would then purportedly
use the eamings from this in§estment in Benchmark LLC to repay principal and interest due on
the loan from the Benchmark 09 Trust.

63. According to the PPM, MS & Co.’s fees and expenses would total $1,050,000, or
34% of the offering proceeds.

64. Contrary to the representations in the PPM, the net proceeds of the offering were

used for many unauthorized purposes. For example, notwithstanding the PPM’s representation
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that money loaned by the Trust to TDMM Cable Funding would be u;ed to acquire the assets of
Benchmark LLC, McGinn directed that some of the money in the TDMM Cable Funding
account be diverted to affiliated entities, including TDM Cable 06 and TDM Verifier 07 and
TDMM Cable Sr Trust. Those funds were presumably used to pay “interest” to the various
Trusts investors.

65. The Benchmark 09 Trust promised investors 10.5% interest on the notes, with a
maturity date of five years. Given that defendants took 34% of the proceeds to themselves in fees
and diverted additional monies to affiliated entities in unauthorized transfers, their representation
that investors would be repaid out of the investment in Benchmark LLC was false, and McGinn,
Smith, MS & Co. and MS Capital knew, or recklessly disregarded, that this representation was
false. Nevertheless, McGinn continued to personally raise money for this offering as recently as
December: 10, 2009.

The TDMM Cable Trust 09

66. On January 19, 2009, MS & Co. launched an offering of $1,550,000 of 9.00%
three-year notes in TDMM Cable Senior Trust 09 (“Senior 09 Tranche”) and an offering of
$1,325,000 of 11% 54-month notes in TDMM Cable Junior Trust 09 (“Junior 09 Tranche,”
collectively “TDMM Cable 09”). The Senior and Junior offerings sold out.

67. The PPM stated that after MS & Co. took a placement agent fee of 5% of the
amount raised for Senior 09 Tranche and 8% of the amount raised for. Junior 09 Tranche, the
balance, about $2.7 million, would be loaned to TDM Cable Funding, which would use the
proceeds to acquire a-ll the operating assets and customer contracts of Broadband Solutions LLC
and HipNET LLC (both of which purportedly provided “triple play” service to communities in

Florida). The PPM:s also state that TDM Cable Funding would pay MS & Co. an additional
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$400,000 for “acquisition negotiations, legal and due diligence activities”-- making MS & Co.’s
total fee $583,500 or 20.3% of the gross proceeds of the offering.

68. Not satisfied with the disclosed fees, MS & Co. used a total of at least 54% of the
funds raised to: (i) make payments to McGinn, McGinn’s son, Smith, relief defendant Lynn
Smith, MS Partner 4 and an Albany politician; (ii) to cover MS & Co.’s payroll between January
and April 2009; and (iii) to pay investors in other Trust entities. The following is a summary of
McGinn’s misuse use of TDMM Cable 09 investor funds:

69. During January 2009, MS & Co. raised the first $554,000 from investors for the
Senior 09 Tranche. On January 30, 2009, McGinn transferred $475,000 from the Trust to TDM
Cable Funding, and transferred $413,000 from the TDM Cable Funding to MS & Co., where it
was immediately used to cover the firm’s payroll.

70. In February 2009, McGinn again transferred large sums of money from the TDMM
Cable Senior Trust account to TDM Cable Funding and then to MS & Co to make MS & Co.’s
mid-February and end of February payroll. The following months, MpGinn again transferred

substantial amounts from the TDMM Cable 09 Trust accounts to MS & Co. to cover the March

31 and April 30 payrolls.

71. McGinn also transferred a total of at least $99,000 to McGinn’s personal account;
more than $21,000 to McGinn’s son (apparently a lawyer who worked for MS & Co.); more than
$105,000 to a MS & Co. affiliate called Mr. Cranberry; _$18,750I to an Albany politician’s law
firm; at least $70,000 to MSTF; $26,500 to Verifier 07; $10,000 to Firstline Trust; $25,000 to a

senior MS & Co. officer $24,000 to Smith; and more than $335,000 to Smith’s wife, relief

defendant Lynn Smith.

19



Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-DRH Document 26-4 Filed 05/21/10 Page 20 of 35
Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-RFT Document 1  Filed 04/20/10 Page 20 of 35

72. The transfers described above total $1,646,040 -- nearly three times the fees to

which MS & Co. Entities were entitled pursuant to the PPMs, and more than half of the gross

offering proceeds.
The Verifier 08 Trust

73. In December 2007, MS & Co. launched an offering for the TDM Verifier 08 Trust.
Verifier 08 offered up to $3.85 million in 18-month notes and 36-month notes, with returns of
8.5% and 10%, respectively. The offering sold out.

74. The PPM represented that the net proceeds of the Trust, $3,484,500, (after
subtraction of MS and Co. 9.5% fee of $365,750) were to be “advanced” by the Trust to McGipn
Smith Funding LLC (“MS Funding”) for the pﬁrpose of purchasing $_3,000,000 face value of
“guaranteed payment units” issued by Verifier Capital LLC, a company that “provides capital to
security alarm dealers by purchasing some or all of their security alarm monitoring accounts.” A
senior managing director of MS & Co. was the Chairman and 12.5% owner of Verifier Capital

LLC.

75. The Trust has had to borrow money from other McGinn Smith Entities to make its
scheduled interest payments.

76. Verifier 08 investors were deceived about the success of the Verifier 08 Trust with
the first quarterly “interest” payment, which was actually a return of investor capital.

77. Thereafter, in order to make quarterly interest payments to Verifier 08 investors,
the Verifier 08 Trust repeatedly borrowed funds from other MS Entities. Furthermore, despite

having income insufficient to make interest payments to investors, the Trust made numerous

unauthorized loans to other MS Entities.
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The CCV Trust

78.  McGinn, MS Capital and MS & Co. also deceived investors into unwittingly
investing in a sexually-oriented charter cruise venture created by McGinn. In February 2008,
MS & Co. launched a $3,250,000 note offering for an entity 50% owned by an MS & Co.
affiliate called CCV. The PPM stated that CCV “is engaged in the business of procuring whole :
ship charters and selling the berths to various affinity groups.” The PPM stated that the net
proceeds of the offering would be used to charter a ship and to “underwrite the marketing, sales
and administrative expenses associated with selliné [the] berths for the cruise.”

79. The PPM did not disclose that CCV operated under the name YOLO (You Only
Live Once) Cruises, that the affinity group was sexually oriented, that strippers and go-go
dancers would be procured to entertain passengers, that investor money would be used to buy
insurance for these individuals and that YOLO was run by a woman with whom McGinn was
romantically involved.

80. The PPM failed to disclose that instead o}f marketing charters to an unlimited
variety of “affinity groups” aé represented, the charters would only be marketed to a narrow
niche of potential customers interested in cruises “involving sexually themed activities among
and between consenting adults” (as belatedly disclosed in a PPM for a later offering) and that the
charters would involve legally and morally questionable activities that investors might not want
to b;z associated with. _

81. McGinn was the managing member of CCV. He was involved in its day-to-day

operations and was keenly interested in the activities aboard the cruise. McGinn “borrowed”

from other Trusts and Funds to fund CCV.

21



Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-DRH Document 26-4 Filed 05/21/10 Page 22 of 35
Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-RFT Document 1  Filed 04/20/10 Page 22 of 35

82. Even though CCV lost $1.5 million during its first 17 months of operation,
McGinn and Smith nonetheless enriched themselves. CCV transferred at least $50,000 to Smith,
$75,000 to McGinn, and paid at least $245,000 to MS & Co. in “advi'sory fees.” CCV also paid
McGinn'’s son (an attorney and MS & Co. employee) $7,240 for “consulting.” Between July
2008 and November 2009, CCV also transferred to McGinn more than $156,000, purportedly to
pay credit card charges related to meals, travel and other expenses; and in June 2009, CCV
transferred more than $32,000 to White Glove Cruises, a Florida company managed by McGinn.

83. The CCV Trust also promised investors a 13% rate of interest on their notes, even
though the Trust was to eam its investment return by loaning the money to CCV, which was

obligated to pay back interest to the CCV Trust of only 10%.

The CCV Trust (2" PPM).

84. In 2009, MS & Co. conducted a second CCV offering of $400,000 raised from just
three investors. The PPM falsely and misleadingly stated that CCV’s loss for the period
February 1, 2008 through June 2009 was $870,000. In fact, MS & Co.’s internal books and
records show a-loss of nearly $1.5 million during that period.

The Firstline Trusts

85. Firstline Trusts raised a total of $7 million in 2007. According to the Firstline
Trust 07 Junior PPM, dated October 19, 2007, the Firstline Trusts were created to acquire a
tranche of financing secured by contracts owned or originated by Firstline Security, Inc., a
security alarm company. In January 2008, Firstlitie Security filed for‘bankruptcy. Nonetheless,

MS & Co. continued to sell notes in this offering without disclosing the bankruptcy filing to

investors.
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86. A December 7, 2009 email to McGinn reveals that Firstline loaned another
McGinn Smith affiliated entity, known as Mr. Cranberry, more than $2.27 million. Mr.
Cranberry does not appear to be involved in the security alarm business.

MS & Co. Did Not Disclose that the Proceeds Wﬁuld Be Commingled.

87. A common feature of most of the Trust offerings was that the proceeds - rather
than being directly invested -- were “loaned” to an intermediate entity, most often TDM Cable
Funding (see, e.g. Verifier 07 (for the purchase of alarm contract receivables); TDM Luxury
(luxury cabin cruise receivables); and TDM Cable 06 and TDMM Cable 09 Junior and Senior
(triple play receivables). However, instead of using the proceeds for the stated purpose, Smith
and McGinn diverted the proceeds as needed to meet the cash needs of other McGinn Smith
Entities.

88. As alleged above, on several occasions, McGinn transferred funds raised in the
TDMM Cable 09 offerings to TDM Cable Funding, and then transferred those funds to MS &

Co. for payroll.

McGinn and Smith Have Taken Large Personal “Loans” from Various McGinn
Smith Entities ’

89. " McGinn, Smith and another senior MS & Co. employee frequently received
substantial “loans” from tile McGinn Smith Entities. Between October 2006 and October 2009,
TDM Cable Funding “loaned” McGinn $830,341, Smith $694,000, and the senior MS & Co.
employee $563,000, for a total of nearly $2.1 million. None of these loans has been repaid, and
it does not appear that any interest has ever been paid.

90. McGinn and Smith each took a $200,000 loan from the Firstline Trust, Firstline

Securities filed for bankruptcy a few months after the four Firstline offerings raised about $7
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million. Although Firstline Trust. investors are owed $5.9 million, McGinn and Smith have not
repaid the loans. |

91. McGinn also authorized the following additional personal loans, none of which
were evidenced by loan documentation: (i) from NEI, a McGinn Smith Entity, to Smith totaling
$360,000, to the senior MS & Co. employee totaling $285,000 and to McGinn totaling $340,000;
and (ii) from TDMM Cable Funding to Smith totaling $74,000, to the senior MS & Co.
employee totaling $25,000 and to McGinn totaling $82,500.

McGinn and Smith Submitted Backdated Documents to FINRA

92. While under investigation by FINRA, McGinn, Smith and MS & Co. submitted

numerous backdated promissory notes after FINRA requested loan documentation during its

€xam.

MS & Co. Has Paid for Luxuries for Smith and McGinn and Transferred
Funds to Smith’s Wife

93. From at least January 2004 through at least December 2008, MS & Co. made
monthly payments on two cars for Smith (a Lexus and a Mercedes) totaling about $89,000,
including payments of about $17,000 in each of 2007 and 2008. MS & Co. made monthly
payments on McGinn’s behalf to exclusive country clubs, including the Schuyler Meadows Club,

the Fort Orange Club and the Pine Tree Golf Club. In 2007 and 2008 alone, those payments

totaled more than $22,000.

94. MS Capital transferred $335,000 to accounts in the name of Smith’s wife, relief
defendant Lynn Smith. Lynn Smith received mariy other payments from McGinn Smith
Entities. On May 4, 2009, for example, Smith directed that a $100,000 check be issued to his

wife’s account at National Financial Services. Smith also testified that his salary was generally

paid to his wife, Lynn.
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The Misuse of Funds and Deception Has Become More Desperate

95.  The audited financial statements for MS & Co. for 2008 state that the firm had a
loss of more than $1.8 million, and includes a “going concern” clause. Virtually every day in
2009, McGinn obtained from his accounting staff a summary of the cash available in the bank
accounts controlled by MS & Co., and a report of the immediate “funding needs.” The
documentary evidence reveals a constant movement of money among dozens of MS & Co.
affiliates and scores of bank accounts, designed to use any cash available to satisfy the most
pressing funding needs — primarily the firm’s payroll, and payments tb the personal accounts of
McGinn and Smith, along with interest payments and redemption requests by investors

threatening to complain to authorities.

96. Internal MS & Co. emails in 2009, including many by McGinn and Smith, reveal a
constant need to raise millions of dollars, a growing desperation to make payroll, meet interest
payments and assuage investors complaining of a Ponzi scheme, in order to keep their house of
cards from collapsing. For example, on February 24, 2009, Smith emailed McGinn regarding an
upcoming payroll. He stated: “We have been living dn the edge for some time and Tim’s deals
héve kept us alive by fronting our profit. However, the $200,000 + that we are losing every
* month is just too difficult to keep pace with.” On February 25, 2009, another MS & Co. Partner 3
emailed Smith: “In our many conversations over the last year, I came to understand the depths to
which the firm has sunk relative to its revenue.” The liquidity problems were so severe that one
outside broker was forced to invest $10,000 of his own money so one of his elderly customers
could be redeemed.

97. Notwithstanding these financial woes, McGinn and Smith continued to solicit

nvestors for the Four Funds and the Trusts throughout 2009 and into 2010, using the original
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Fund and Trust PPMs. In Smith’s testimony provided to FINRA on February 12, 2010, Smith
stated that MS & Co. continues to raise funds from new investors. Smith stated that TDM

Benchmark Trust.
FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
~ Violations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act
(Against MS & Co., MS Advisors, MS Capital, McGinn, Smith)
(Antifraud violations)

113. Paragraphs 1 through 112 are realleged and incorporated by reference as if set
forth ﬁ1'11y herein.

114.  The Fund and Trust certificates and notes are securities within the meaning of
Section 2(1) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77b(1) and Section 3(a)(10) of the Exchange Act
[15U.8.C. § 78c(a)(10)].

115.  From at least 2005 through the present, the Defendants, directly or indirectly,
singly or in concert, by use of the means or instruments of transportation or communication in, or
the means or instrumentalities of, interstate commerce or by the use of the mails, in connection
with the offer or sale of securities, knowingly or recklessly: a) employed, are employing or are
about to employ devices, schemes and artifices to defraud; b) have obtained, are obtaining or are
about to obtain money and property by means of untrue statements of material fact or omissions
to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and/or c) have engaged, are
engaging or are about to engage in transactions, practices or courses of business which have
operated, operate or will operate as a frand and deceit upon investors.

116. By reason of the foregoing, the Defendants, directly or indirectly, singly or in concert,

have violated, are violating , and unless restrained and enjoined will again Section 17(a) of the Securities

Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(2)].
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SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Antifraud Violations)
Violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5
(Against MS & Co., MS Advisors, MS Capital, McGinn, Smith)

117.  Paragraphs 1 through 116 are realleged and incorporated by reference as if set
forth fully herein.

118.  From at least 2005 through the present, the Defendants, directly or indirectly,
singly or in concert, by use of the means or instruments of transportation or communication in, or
the means or instrumentalities of, interstate commerce or by the use of the mails, in connection
with the offer or sale of securities, knowingly or recklessly: a) employed, are employing or are
about to employ devices, schemes and artifices to defraud; b) have obtained, are obﬁining or are
about to obtain money and property by means of untrue statements of material fact or omissions
to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and/or c) have engaged, are
engaging or are about to engage in transactions, practices or courses of business which have
operated, operate or will operate as a fraud and deceit upon investors.

119. By reason of the activities herein described, the Ijefendants, singly or in concert,
directly or indirectly, have violated, are violating, and unless restrained and enjoined will again

violate Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17 C.F.R.

§240.10b-5] promulgated thereunder.
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THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Violations, and Aiding and Abetting Violations, of
Section 15(c)(1) Of The Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §780(c)(1), And
Rule 10b-3, 17 C.F.R. §240.10b-3
(Against MS & Co. and aiding and abetting by McGinn and Smith)
(Violations of Antifraud Provisions by Brokers)

120. Paragraphs 1 through 119 are realleged and incorporated by reference as if set
forth fully herein.

121. MS & Co. engaged and is engaging in the business of effecting transactions in
securities for the accounts of others, and therefore was and is a broker within the meaning of
Section 3(a)(4) of the Exchange Act, 15U.S.C. §78c(a)(4)'.

122. MS & Co., while a broker, directly or indirectly, by use of the mails or the means
or instrumentalities of interstate commerce, has effected and is effecting transactions in, and has
induced and attempted to induce and are attempting to induce the purchase or sale of, securities
by means of manipulative, deceptive, or other fraudulent devices or contrivances, including: (a)
acts, practices, and courses of business that operated or would have operated as a fraud or deceit
upon any person, including persons to whom MS & Co. offered and/or sold securities; and (b)
making uﬁtrue_statements of material fact and omissions to state a material fact necéssary, in
order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made,
not misleading with knowledge or reasonable grounds to believe that such statements are untrue
or misleading.

123.  Aspart of and in furtherance of this violative conduct, MS & Co. offered and/or
sold securities by making the material misrepresentations and omissions set forth herein.

124. MS & Co. knew, was reckless in not knowing, or had reasonable grounds to

believe that said representations or omissions were false or misleading,

125. By reason of the foregoing, MS & Co. has violated, is violating, and unless
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restrained and enjoined, will again violate Section 15(c)(1) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C.
§780(c)(1), and Rule 10b-3, 17 C.F.R. §240.10b-3.

126.  To the extent McGinn and Smith were associated with MS & Co., and not acting
brokers unassociated with a registered broker-dealer, McGinn and Smith each aided and abetted,
and, unless restrained and enjoined, will again aid and abet, MS & Co’s violations of Section

15(c)(1) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §780(c)(1), and Rule 10b-3, 17 C.F.R. §240.10b-3.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(MS & Co., MS Advisors, McGinn and Smith)
Violations of Sections 206(1), 206(2) and 206(4) of the Advisers Act and Rule 206(4)-8

127.  Paragraphs 1 through 126 are realleged and incorporated and incorporated by reference as
if set forth fully herein.

128.  From at least 2005 through the present, MS & Co. and MS Advisors, by use of the means
or instrumentalities of interstate commerce or of the mails, and while engaged in the business of
advisir;g others for compensation as to the advisability of investing in, purchasing, or selling securities:
(a) employed devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud; and (b) engaged in acts, practices, or courses of
business which operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon clients or prospective clients.

129. By reason of the foregoing, MS & Co. and MS Advisors, singly or in concert, directly or
indirectly, violated Sections 206(1), 206(2) and 206(4) of the Advisers Act [15U.8.C. §§ 80b-6(1) and
(2)] and Rule 206(4)-8 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §275.206(4)-8].

130.  McGinn and Smith, knowingly or recklessly provided substantial assistance to MS & Co.
and MS Advisors and thereby directly -or indirectly, singly or in concert, by use of the means or

instrumentalities of interstate commerce, or of the mails, aided and abetted MS & Co. and MS Advisors’
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violations of Sections 206(1), 206(2) and 206(4)-2 of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 80b-6(1) and (2)]

and Rule 206(4)-2 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §275.206(4)-8].
FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Violations of Section 7(a) of the Investment Company Act
(FAIN, FEIN, FIIN and TAIN)

131.  Paragraphs 1 through 130 are realleged and incorporated and incorporated by reference
as if set forth fully herein.

132. FAIN, FEIN, FIIN and TAIN issued securities, in the form of notes, in what amounted to
a public offering, and held themselves out as funds formed to identify and acquire various public and/or
private investments, which may include, without limitation, debt securities, collateralized debt
obligations, bonds, equity securities, trust preferreds, collateralized stock, convertible stock, and any
other investments that may add value to our portfolio.

133.  Accordingly, FAIN, FEIN, FIIN and TAIN were investment companies under Section
3(a)(1) of the Company Act [15 U.S.C. § 80a-3(a)(1)], and were required to register as investment
companies with the Commission under Section 7(a) of the Company Act [15 U.S.C. § 80a-7(a)]. FAIN,
FEIN, FIIN and TAIN were never so registered and, while acting as investment companies, FAIN,
FEIN, FIIN and TAIN offered, purchased and sold, redeemed or retired securities by the use of the mails

and the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce and engaged in business in interstate

commerce.

134. By reason of the foregoing, FAIN, FEIN, FIIN and TAIN violated Section 7(a) of the

Company Act [15 U.S.C. § 80a-7(a)].
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SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Violations of Section 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act
(MS & Co., MS Capital, the Four Funds, McGinn and Smith )

135. Paragraphs 1 through 134 are realleggd and incorporated and incorporated by reference as
if set forth fully herein.

136. The notes and certificates that MS & Co., MS Capital, FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, TAIN,
McGinn and Smith offered and sold as alleged herein constitute “securities” as defined in the Securities
Act and the Exchange Act.

137. The FAIN, FEIN, FIIN and TAIN offerings were not limited to 35 or fewer non-
accredited purchasers, and MS & Co., MS Capital, FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, TAIN, McGinn and Smith could
not reasonably have believed that the offering was so limited. Further, not all of the non-accredited
purchasers satisfied the sophistication requirement of Rule 506(b)(2)(.ii) of Regulation D [17 C.F.R. §
230.506(b)(2)(ii)], and MS & Co., MS Capital, FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, TAIN , McGinn and Smith could not
reasonably have believed that all such purchasers met the requirement at the time they invested.

138. MS & Co., MS Capital, FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, TAIN, McGinn and Smiﬁu Investments
singly or in concert, directly or indirectly, have made usé of the means or instruments of transportation
or communication in interstate commerce, or of the mails, to offer and sell securities through the use or
medium of a prospectus or otherwise, or have carried or caused to be carried through the mails or in
interstate commerce, by any means or instruments of transportation, securities for the purposé of sale or
for delivery after sale, when no registration statement has been filed or was in effect as to such securities
and when no exemption from registration was available.

139. By reason of the foregoing MS & Co., MS Capital, FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, TAIN, McGinn

and Smith singly or in concert, directly or indirectly, have violated, are violating, and unless enjoined

will again violate Sections S(zi) and 5(c) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 77e(a) and 77e(c)].
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SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Relief Defendant)

140.  Paragraphs ] through 139 are realleged and incorporated and incorporated by
reference as if set forth fully herein.

141. Relief Defendant Lynn A. Smith was a recipient, without consideration, of
proceeds of the fraudulent and illegal sales of securities alleged above. The Relief Defendant
profited from such receipt or from the fraudulent and illegal sales of éecuﬁﬁes alleged above by
obtaining illegal proceeds under circumstances in which it is not just, equitable, or conscionable
for her to retain the illegal proceeds. Consequently, Lynn Smith has been named as a Relief
Defendant for the amount of proceeds by which she has been unjustly enriched as a result of the
fraudulent scheme or illegal sales transactions.

142. By reason of the foregoing, Lynn Smith should disgorge her ill-gotten gains, plus

prejudgment interest.
- PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court grant the following

relief:

L

Enter a Final Judgment finding that the Defendants each violated the securities laws and

rules promulgated thereunder as alleged against them herein;

IL

Enter an Order temporarily and preliminarily, and a Final Judgment permanently,

restraining and enjoining the Defendants and their agents, servants, employees and attorneys and
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all persons in active concert or participation with them who receive actual notice of the
injunction by personal service or otherwise, and each of them, from committing future violations
of each of the securities laws and rules promulgated thereunder, or altemnatively, from aiding and

abetting such future violations, as respectively alleged against them herein.
I

An Order freezing the assets of the Defendants, the Relief Defendant, and all McGinn

Smith Entities pending further Order of the Court.

Iv.

An Order appointing temporary and preliminary receivers over the Defendants and all

McGinn Smith Entities. |
IV.

An Order directing the Defendants, the Relief Defendant and all McGinn Smith Entities
to file with this Court and serve upon the Commission, within three (3) business days, or within
such extension of time as the Commission staff agrees in writing or as otherwise ordered by the
Court, a verified written accounting, signed by each of them under penalty of perjury.

V.
An Order permitting expedited discovery.
VI

An Order permanently restraining and enjoining the Defendants, the Relief Defendant,

| the McGinn. Smith Entities and any person or entity acting at their direction or on their behalf,

from destroying, altering, concealing, or otherwise interfering with the access of the Commission

to relevant documents, books and records.
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VIL
A Final Judgment directing the Defendants and the Relief Defendant to disgorge their ill-
gotten gains, plus prejudgment interest.
VIII.
A Final Judgment dirgcting the Defendants to pay civil money penalties pursuant to
Section 20(d) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(d)] and Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange

Act[15U.S.C. § 78u(d)(3)}.
IX.
- A Final Judgment permanently prohibiting McGinn from acting as an officer or director
of any issuer that has a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act

[15U.S.C. §781] or that is required to file reports pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act

[15U.S.C. §780(d)];
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X.

Granting such other and further relief as this Court deems just and proper.

Dated: New York, New York ! L
April 20, 2010 : 29
s¥David Stoelting

Attorney Bar Number: 516163
Attorney for Plaintiff

Securities and Exchange Commission
3 World Financial Center, Room 400
New York, NY 10281

Telephone: (212) 336-0174

Fax: (212) 336-1324

E-mail: stoeltingd@sec.gov

Of Counsel:
Andrew Calamari
Michael Paley
Kevin McGrath
Lara Mehreban
Linda Arnold
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U.8. DISTRICT COu
N.D. OF N.Y.

ORIGINAL FILEL

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT ' APR 2°0 2010
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK =
- : LAWRENCE K. BAERMAN, CLEFr

: ALBANY
- SECURFTIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, : ‘
Plaintify, :
-against- ‘ 2 S0 Qu - CG—LS/EF;j
' MCGINN, SMITH & CO., INC.; - . ‘ B .

MCGINN, SMITH ADVISORS LLG;
MCGINN, SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORP.;
FIRST ADVISORY INCOME N OTES,LLC; .
FIRST EXCELSIOR INCOME N OTES, LLC; Lot ;
FIRST INDEPENDENT INCOME NOTES, LLC; . : :
THIRD ALBANY INCOME NOTES, LLC; : - ¢
TIN[OTHY M. MCGINN; AND
DAVID L. SMITH,

Defendants, and
LYNN A. SMITH, ‘

Relief Defendant.

ORDER TO.SHOW CAUSE,
TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER, :
AND ORDER FREEZING ASSETS AND GRANTING OTHER RELIEF
On the Application of Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Cormnission (the “Commission”™) ‘ L.
for an Or&er:
(1)  directing defendants McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc. (“MS & Co."); McGinn, Smith

Capital™); First

| Advisors LLC (“MS Advisors™); McGinn, Smith Cgpital Holdings Corﬁ. ("MS
Advisory Income Not.es, LLC (‘TAN’); First Excelsior Income Notes, LLC (“FEIN); First
Independent lnéome Notes, LLC (“FON™); Third Albahy.Income Notes, LLC ("TAIN™);
Timothy M. McGinn; Dax;id L. Smith (colleetively, the “Defendants”) to show canse why an

Ol:der should not be entered, pending a final disposition of ﬂ11:s action:
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@

®)

©

preliminarily enjoining:

®

(@)

(i) -

i)

)

assets;

MS & Co., MS Capital, FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, TAIN, McGinn and
Smith from violaﬁng-Secﬁons 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act of

1933 (“Securities Act”), 15 U.S.C. §§ 77e(a) and 77e(c);

MS & Co., MS Advisors, MS Capital, McGinn and Smith from
\;iolating S;acﬁon 17(a) of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. § 7;7q(a)
and Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(“Exchange Act”), 15 U.S.C. § 781(b) and Exchange Act Rule 10b-
5 thereunder, 17 CFR. § 240.10b-5;

MS & Cor, MS Advisors, MoGizm and Smith from violsting

Sections 206(1), 206(2), and 206(4) of the Investment Advisers

" Act of 1940 (“Advisers Act?), 15 US. C. §§ 80b-6(1) and (2), and

Rule 206(4)-8 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. §275.206(4)-8;

MS & Co. from violati:ng Section 15(c)(1)(A) of the Excharige Act,

15U.S.C. § 78(0)(1), and Smith and McGinn from siding and

abetting this violation; and,
FA]N, FEIN, FIIN.and TAIN from violating Section 7(a) of the
Investment Company Act of 1940 (“Company Act”), 15 U.S.C. §

80a-7,

ﬁrqezing the Defendants’ and Lynn Smith’s (the “Relief Defendant”)

-

directing McGinn and Smith (the “Individual Defendants”) to provide

verified accountings for themselves and MS & Co., MS Advisors, MS
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@

NG)

(2  pending adjudication of the foregoing, an Order:

@

()
©

@

©

®

Capital, FAIN, FEIN, FIIN and TAIN (the “Entity Defendants”), and the
Relief’ befendant to provide a verified accormtiﬁg for herself;

appointing a receiver for the Entity Defendants and all other entities
McGinn and/or Smith control or have an ownershi;; interest m
(collectively the “MS Entities™); and

prohibiting the destruction, alteration or concealment of documents

temporarily restraining the Defendants from violating the aforementioned

R AR AL

statutes and rules;

freezing the Defendants’ and Relief Defendant’s assets;

directing each of the Individnal Defendants to immediately provide the
verified accounts for themselves and th'e Entity Defend.ants, and the Relief
Defendant to provide the verified accounts for herself: .
appointing a temporary receiver for the MS Enﬁﬁés;

prohibiting the destruction, alteration or concealment of documents by the
Defendants; and

providing that the parties may take expedited discovery in preﬁaration for

a preliminary injunction heaﬁng on this Order to Show Cause.

This Cpurt has considered: (1) the Complaint filed by the Comumission, dated April 20,

2010; (2) ﬁle Declaration of Israel Maya, executed on April 20, 2010, and the exhibits thereto;

(3) the Declaration of Lara Shalov Mehrabén, executed on April 20, 2010, and the exhibits

thereto; and (4) the memorandum of law in support of Plaiftiff Cornmission’s application, dated

April 20, 2010.
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Based upon the foregoing documents, the Court finds that a proper showing, as required
by'Section 20(b) c;f the Securities Act, Section 21(d) of the Exchange Act, Section 209(d) of the
Advisers Act, and Section 42(d) of the Company Act, has been made for the relief granted
herein, for the following reasons: .

1. It appears from the evidence presented that, unless temporarily restrained, (1)
Defendant MS & Co. has violated, and will contimue to violate, Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the
Securities Act, Section 17(a) of the Securities Act, Secﬁon. 10(b) éf ’fhe Exchange Act and
Exchz;nge Act and Rule 10b-5, Section 206(1), 206(2), an;l 206(4) of the Advisers Act and
AQviser Act Rule éO6(4)~8, and Secii(;n 15(c)(2)(1) of the Exchange Act; (2) Defendant MS
Advisors has violated,. and w111 con@e to violate, Section 17(a) of the Securities Act, Section
10(b) of the Exchange Act and Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5, Section 206(1), 206(2), and
206(4) of the Advise.rs Act and Adviser Act Rule 206(4)-8; (3) Defendant MS Capital has
violated, and w1]1 conﬁnu;: to violate, Sections 5(2) and 5(c) of the Securities Act, Section 17(a)
of the Securities Act, Section 10(b) of the Exchange‘Act and Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 ;.(4)
Defendants FAIN, FEIN, FIIN and TAIN have violated, and will contimue to violate, Section
7(a) c;f the Compény Act; and (5) Defendants McGinn and Smith have violated, and will
continue to violate Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act, Section i7(a) of the Securities
Act, Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5, and Section 206(1),
206(2), and 206(4) of the Adyisers Act and Adviser Act Rule 206(4)-8, and Defenda.nt's McGinn
and Smith have aided and abetted, and will continue to aid and abet MS & Co.’s violation of

-Section 15(c)(a)(1) of the Exchange Act. |
2. It appears that the Defendants and Relief Defendant may atternpt to dissipate,

deplete, or transfer from the jurisdiction of this Court, funds, property and other assets that conld
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"be subject to an order of disgorgement or an order imposing c1v11 penalties. It appears‘ that an
order freezing the Defendants’ and Relief Defe;xdmt’s assets, as specified herein, is necessary to
preserve the status'quo, to protect investors and clients of the Defendants from further transfers
of funds and misappropriation, to protect this Court’s ability to award equitable.relief in the form
of disgorgement of illegal profits from fraud and civil penalties, and to preserve the Court’s |
ability to approve a fair distribution for victims of the fraud.

3. Tt appeas that an order requiring each of the Iudiﬁduﬂ Defendants and Reljef
Defendant to ‘provide a verified accounting of their assets, money and property held directly or
indirectly by the Defendants and Relief Defendant, or by others for the direct and indirect
béneﬁcigl intt;.rest of the Defendants and Relief Defendant, is necessary to effectuate and @e
compliance with the freeze imposed on the Defendants’ and Relief Defendant’s assets. -

4, It appears that the Defendants may attempt to d;astroy, alter or coﬁceal documents.

5. It appears that the appointment of a receiver for the MS Entities is necessary to (i)
preserve the status quo; (ii) ascertain the extent of c_ommingliﬁg of funds among the MS Entities;
(iif) ascertain the true financial condition of the MS Entities and the ciisp.osition of investor
funds; (iv) prevent further dissipation of the propert}; and assets of the MS Entities; (v) prevent
the encumbrance.or disposal of property or assets of the MS Entities and ﬁe investors; (vi)
p;e.sezve the books, records and documents ofthe MS Entities; (vii) be aya.ilable. to respond to
investor inquiries; (viii) pxotgct mvestors’ assets; and (ix) determine whether-the MS EI_1tities
should imdertake bankruptcy filings. ' |

6. Good and suf;ﬁcient reasons have been shown why procedure other than by notice

of motion is necessary.

7. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action and over the
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Defendants and Relief Defendant, and venue properly lies in this District. .
- NOW, THEREFORE,
L

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Defendants show cause, if there be any, to this

Court a’é 3.; Q0 ' p.m.onthe 3 cAday of M...i 2010, in%ém_(?_ of the
Jamnes T. Foley United States Courthouse, 445 Broadway, Albany, NY 12207-2924, why this
Court should not enter an brder pursuant to Rule 65 of the Federal Rules of Ciyii Procedure, .
Section 20 of the Securities Act, and.sgzﬁon 21 of the Exchange Act, Section 209(d) ofthe.
Advisel-s Act, and Section 42 of the Company Act preliminarily enjoining:

(1)  MS & Co., MS Capital, FAIN, FEIN, FIIN,- TAIN, McGinn and Smith from
violating Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of t.he Securities Act, 15US.C. .§§ 77¢e(a) and
77e(e);

(@)  MS & Co., MS Advisors, MS Capital, McGinn and Smith: from violating Section
17(a) of thé Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. § 77q(a) and Section 10(b) of the Exchange
Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78j(b) and Exchange Act Rule 10b-5 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. §

240.10b-5;

(3  MS & Co., MS Advisors, McGimm and Smith from ﬁolaﬁng Sections 206(1),
206(2), and 206(4) of the Advisers Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 80b-6(1) and (2), and Rule ..
206(4)-8 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. §275.206(4)-8;

(49 MS&Co., from violgﬁng Section 15(c)(1)(A) of the Exchange Acf, 15US.C. §
78(0)(1), and Smith and McGinn from aiding and abetting this violation; and,

(5)  FAIN, FEIN, FIIN and TAIN from violating Seé,tion 7(a) of the Company Act, 15

U.S.C. § 80a-7.

B BRIt g
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IL
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendmt; show cause at that time why this
Court should not also enter an Order dlrectmg that, pending a final disposition of this action, the
Defendants,. the Relief Defendant, and each of their financial and b1.'lokerage iﬁstituﬁong, officers,
agents, servants, employees, attorneys-in-fact, and tho_se persons in ac.:tive co.ncert or '
participation with them who receive actual notice of snch Order bypersonél service, facsimile
service or otherwise, and each of them, hold and retain within their conrol, and otherwise -
prevent, any withd;awal, transfer, pledge, encumbrance, assignmeant, dissipation, concealment or
other disposal of any assets, funds, or other property (incinding money, real or persqna} I;roperty, )
securities, commodities, choses in. action or other property of any kind whatsoever) of, held by,
or under the direct or indirect control of the Defendants and Relief Defendant, including but not
Himited to, the MS Etitis; including but not limited to, those entities listed on Exhibit A,
whether held in any of their names or for any of their direct or indirect beneficial interest
wherever situated, in whatever form such assets may presently exist and wherever ;ocated within
the te&itoria] jurisdiction of the United States courts, and directing each of the financial or
brokerage institntions, debtors and bailees, or any other person or entity holding such assets,
funds or other pr;peny of the Defendants and Relief Defendant to hold or retain within its or his
control and prohibit the vvithdrawal, removal, transfer or other disposal of ;ny such assets, fimds
or other properties ﬁclu&ng but not limited to, all assets, funds, or other properties held in the
accounts h'sted-on Exhibit B, as well as each real estate parcel owned directly or .i.r‘zdirectly by the
MS Entities, includirg but not limite@ to, those entities liéted on Exhibit A.
| .

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendants show cause at that time why this
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" Court should not also enter an Order enjoining and restraining thern, and any person or entity

acﬁng at their direction or on their behalf, or any other person, from destroying, altering,

concealing or otherwise interfering with the access of Plaintiff Commission and the receiver to

any and all documents, books and records, that are in the possession, custody or coiltrol of the

Defendants, and each of their officers, agents, employe.es, servants, accountants, financial or

" brokerage institgtions, attormeys-in-fact, subsidiaries, affiliates, predecessors, successors an&
related entities, jncluding but not limited to, the MS Entities, inclnding but not hmJted to; those
enfities listed on Exhibit A, that refer, reflect or relate to ’;he allegations in the Compla.int,l
including, without limitation, documents, books, and records referring, reflecting or relating to
the Defendants’ finances or business operations. '

Iv.
.IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the_ Defendaﬁts show cause at that time why this

Court should not also enter an Order directing each of the Individual Defendants to serve upon
Plaintiff Commission, within three (3) business days, or w1th1n such extension of time as the |

. Commissfon agreés to,a verified written accounting each signed by Def;andants McGinn and - ‘
Smith and also signed by the officer or employees of the Entity Defendants who are most

knowledgéable about the assets, liabilities and general financial condition of each of the

Defendants, and verified accountings signed by each of the Individual Defendants and the Relief » Z

Defendant identifying their owﬁ assets, liabilities and general financial condition, if any, under
penalty of perjury. Each of tht? Defendants and Relief Defendant shall serve such swom updatéd‘
written accountings by hand delivery, facsimile transmission to (212) 336-1324 or overnight
courier service on the Commissiox_l’s counsel, David Stoelting, Esq., Securities and Exchange

Comumission, 3 World Financial Center, New York, NY 10281.
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V.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Individual Defendants and Relief Defendant shall
file with the Court and serve on the Commission, within three (3) business days following
service of this Order, a list of all accounts at all banks, brokerage ﬁnns or financial institutions
(fnciuding the name .df the financial institution and the name and number on the account), tax
identification numbers, telephone or facsimile transmission numbers (including numbers of
pagers and mobile telephones), electronic mail addresses, World Wide Web sites or Universal
Records L'ocators, Internet bull‘eﬁn board sites, online in’;erécﬁve conversational spaces or chat

" rooms, Internet or electronic mail sexvice providers, street addresse.s, postal box numbers,-. safety
deposit boxes‘ and storage facilities used or maintained by them or under their direct or indirect
control, at any time from January 1, 2005 to the present including but not limited to information
concemmg the MS Entmes, mcludmg but not limited to, those entities listed on Exhibit A
| VL.

IT. IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendants show cause at that time why this
Court siic;lﬂd ot also enter an Order appointing or continuing the appointment of a receiver for
the MS Entities and all entities they control or have an ownership interest m including but mot
limited to, those entities listed on Exhibit A, fo (i) preserve the status quo, (ii) ascertain the
extent of commingling of funds among the MS Entities; (iii) ascertain the true financial condition

- of the MS Entities and the disposition of investor funds; .(iv) prevent further dissipation of the
property and assets of the MS Entmes and all entities they control or have an ownership mtemst
in; (v) prevent the encumbrance or dlsposa.l of property or assets of the MS Entities and the
investors; (vi) preserve the books, records am_i documents of the MS Entities;) (vii) be available

to respond to investor inquiries; (viif) protect the assets of the MS Entities from further




Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-DRH Document 26-5 Filed 05/21/10 Page 10 of 32

dissipation; and (ix) determine whether the MS Entities should undertake bankruptcy filings.

To effectuate the foregoing, the receiver would be empowered to:

(@)

®)

©

(d) .

(©

®

Take and retain immediate possession and control of all of the assets and
property, and all books, records and docmnents of the MS Entities including but
not limited to, the entities listed on Exhibit A, and the rights and powers of it with
respect thereto including the powers set forth in the management agreemfs and
LLC agreements and/or operating agreements applicable to any LLCs or other
property or entities owned or contfoued by the Defendants; '
Have exclusive control of, and be ma;ie the sole alfthor-ized signatory for, all H
accounts at any bank, brokerage firm or financial institution that has possession or

control of any assets or funds of the MS Entities including but not limited to, the

' entities listed on Exhibit A;

Pay from available funds necessary business expenses required to preserve the

assets and property of the MS Entities including but not limited to, the entities

) listed on Exhibit A, including the books, records, and documents of the MS

Entities 4nd all entities they control or have an ownership interest in,

notwithstanding the asset freeze imposed by paragraph II, above;

. bl

Take preliminary steps to locate assets that may have been conveyed to third
parties or otherwise concealed;

Take preliminary steps to ascertain the disposition and use of funds obtained by
the Defendants resulting from the sale of securities issued by MS Entities
mcluding but not himited fo, the entities listed on Exhibit A;

Engage and employ I;ersons, including accountants, attorneys and experts, to

10
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assist in the carrying out of the receiv'er’s duties and responsibilities hereunder;
() Reportto the Court and the parties within 45 days from the date of the entry of
thls Order, subj ectté such reasonable extensions as the Court may grant, the -
. following informaﬁ;n:
1. All assets, money, funds, securities, and real or personal property then
held directly or indirectly by or for the benefit of the MS Entities and all entities
they control or have an ownership interest in, including but not limited to, real
prol;erty, bank accounts, brokerage accounts, investments, businegs interests,
personal property, whereyer situate.d, identifying and describing each asset, its
current loéaﬁon and value;
.2. A list of secured creditors and other financial institutions with an interest
in the receivership asséts; |
3. To the extent practicable, a list of investors in the MS Entities including
but not mited to, the entities listed on Exibit A; |
()  The receiver’s preliminary pla;l for the administration of the assets of the
receiversh.ip, including a recommendation regarding whether bankruptcy cases
should be filed for all of 2 porﬁ‘on. of the assets subject to the receivership and a
recomiﬁendaﬁon whether litigation against third parties should be commenced on
a contingent fee basis to recover assets for the benefit of the receivership.
o .
ITIS FUR'fHER ORDERED that; pending a hearing and determination of the
Commission’s Applicaﬁon for Preliminary Injunction, MS & Co., MS Capital, FAIN, FEIN,

FIIN, TAIN, McGinn and Smith and each of the'm, their agents, servants, employees, and

Il

Neehecmmetteaniee o
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attorneys-in-fact, and those persons in active concert or participation with them who receive
actual notice of this Order by personal service, facsimile service, or otherwise, ére. temporarily
) res@r_aine'd ﬁ:om, directly or indirectly, singly or in concert, in the offer or sale of any security, by
use of any means or instruments of transportation dr communication in interstate commerce or
by use of the mails to offer or sell securities through the use or medium of a prospectus or
otherwise when no registrations statement has been filed or is in effect as to such securities and
when no _exei.nption from registration is available in violation of Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the
Securities Act. |
VL | |
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, pending a hearing and determination of the | :
Commissioﬁ’s Application for Prelimjnar}" Iﬂﬁcﬁqm MS & Co., MS Advisors,' MS Capital, and
' éach of their ﬁﬁancial and brokerage insﬁtutio'ns, 'oﬁ(.:ers, agents, servants, employees,.
attomeys-m-fact, and those persons in active concert or participation with them and all othet
persons or entities who receive actual notxce of such Order by personal service, facsimile service
or otherwise, and each of them, are temporarily restrained from violating, directly ox md1rectly,
Section’ 10(b) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78j(b), and Rule 10b-5 promulgaied thereunder,
17 CF.R. § 240. 10b—5 by using any means or mstrmentahty of mterstatc commerce, or of the
. mails, or of any facility of any national securities exchange, in connection with the purchase or
sale of any security:
_ (@ toemploy any device, scheme, or-arti.ﬁce to defraud;
('b) to make any untrue statem’exit of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the statemcﬂts made, in the light of the circumstances

under which they were made, not misleading; or

12
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() to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would
operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person.
X.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, pending 2 hearing and determiﬁaﬁon. of the
Commission’s Application for Preliminary Injunction, MS & Co., MS Ad'visors, MS Capital, and
each of their financial and brokerage institutions, officers, agents, servants, employees,
attorneys-in-fact, and those persons in active concert or‘parﬁci.pation with them and all other
persons or eﬂﬁﬁes who receive agtual notice of such Order by personal service, facsimile sgrvice
or otherwise, and each of them, who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service,

- facsimile ser;rice, or otherwise, are temporarily restrained from violating Section 17(2) of the
Securities Act,'15 U.S.C. § 77q(a), in the offer or sal; of any security by the use of any means or
instruments of transportation or communication in interstate commerce or by use of the maﬂs,
directly or indirectly: | h

(2) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud;

(b)  toobtain n:!'oney or property by means of any untrue statement of a matérial fact

. or any omission of a material fact necessary in order to make the statem;ams
made, in light of the @s@cw under whic;h they were mac}e, not-
misleading; or

(c)  toengageinany tansacﬁoﬂ, practice, or. course of business which operates or

would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser. |

X.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, pending a hearing and determination of the

Commission’s Application for Preliminary Injunction, MS & Co.; and each of its officers,

13
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agents, seevants, employees, attomeys-.in—fact, and those persons in active concert or
participation with them and all other persons or entities who receive actual notice of such Order
by pe;'sonal service, facsimile service or otherwise, and each of them, who regeive actual nofice
of this Order by pgrébnal service, facsimile service, or otherwise, are temporarily restrained from
violating Section 15(c) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78(0)(c), and 17 CF.R. § 240.10b-3, by
while acting as a broker or dealer, dJrectly or .indirectly, making use of the mails or any
instrumentality of interstate commerce, or any facility of any national securities exchange, to
effect any transaction in, ;)I' to induce or attempt to induce the purchase or sale of any security
otherwise than on 2 national exchange of which it is a me1;nb§r, by means of any manipulative,
deceptive or other frandulent device or.conuivang:e, or to ﬁse or employ, in connection with the
pm'chése or sale of any security otherwise than on a national securities exchange, any act, .
practice, or course of bu'siness defined by the Commission to be included within th‘e term
“manipulative, deceptive or other frandulent device or contrivance™ as such térm is uséd in
Se;:ﬁon 15(c)(1) .of the Exchange Act.

- ITIS FI:TRTHER ORDERED that, pending a hearing and determination of the
' Commission;s Application for Prglin_:inary Injunction, the Individual Defendants, and each of
their financial and brokerage institutions, officers, agents, servants, employees, attomeys—in-fabt,
and those persons in active concert or participation with them and all other persons or entities
who receive actual notice of s;mh Order by personal service, facsimile service or otherwise, and
each of them, who re.ceive, actual niotice of this Order by personal service, facsimile service, or
otherwise;, are temf:orarily restrained from aiding and abetting any broker’s or dealer’s violations

of Section 15(c) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78(0)(c), by providing substantial assistance

14
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to an individual or entity, which, while acting as a broker or dealer, directly or indirectly, makes

use of the mails or any instrumentality of interstate commerce, or any facility of any national

_ securities exchange, to effect any transaction in, or to induce or attempt to ﬁduw the purchase .or
sale of any security otherwise than on a national exchange of which it is a member, by means of
-any ma;nipulative, deceptive or other frandulent device or coﬁtrivance, or to use or employ, in
connection with the purchase or sale of any segurity otherwise than on 2 national sécurities
exchange, any act, pracﬁce? or course of business defined by the Commission to be included
within the term “manipulative, deceptive .or other frandulent device or contrivance” as such term
is used in Section 15(c)(1) of the Exchange Act.

X1
ITIS FﬁRTHER ORDERED that pending a hearing and determination of the

. Commission’s Application for Preliminary Injunction; MS & Co., MS Advisors and ‘each of their
officers, ageﬁts, servants, employees, attorneys-in-fact, and those bersons in active concert or
participation with them and all other p;'.rsons or entities who receive actual notice of such Order-
by personal service, facsimilc_a service or .otherwise, and each of them, \ﬁho receive actual notice
of this Order by personal service, facsimile service, or otherwise, are temporarily restrained from
violating Sections 206(1), 206(2) and 206(4) of the Advisers Act, 15U.S.C. §§ 80b-6(1) .and @,
a:nd Rule 206(4)-8 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. §275.206(4)-8, while acting as an investment advisor,
by the use of the me:lils OT any means or instrumen“ta]ity of interstate commerce, directly or
iﬁdirecﬂy to employ any device, scheme or artifice to defraud any client or prospective client; to
engage in any &ansacﬁon, practice or course of business which operates as a fraud or deceit upon
any client or prospective clit;.nt; to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which is

frandulent, deceptive, or manipulative.

15
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XHI.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, pending a hearing and determination of the
Cotnmission’s Application for Preliminary Injunction, FAIN, FE]i\I, FIIN, and TAIN and each of
their officers, agents, servants, employees, attorneys-in-fact, and those persons in active comncert
or participation with them and all other pt;,rsons or entities who receive actunal notice of such
Order by personal service, facsimile service or otherwise, and each of them, who receive actual
notice of this Order by personal service, facsimile service, or otherwise, are temporarily
restrairied from 'v.iolaﬁng Section 7(a) of the Company Act, 15U.S.C. § -80a-7,~'whjle acting as an
investment company, shall directly 6r indirectly, offer for sale, sell, or deliver after sale, by the
use of the mails or any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce, any s.ecurity Or any
interest in a security, whether the issuer of such secunty is such investment company or another
person; or offer for sale, sell, or deliver after sale any such security or interest, havmg TEason to
believe that such security or interest will be made the subject of a public offering by use of the
m.ails or any means or instruomentality of interstate commerce; purchase, redeem, retire, or |
otherwise acquire or attempt to acquire, by use of the meals or any means or instrumentality of
interstate commerce, any security or any interest in a security, whether the issuer of such security
is such invest:ﬁent company or another person; control any in';/estnent company which does any
of the acts eoumerated above; engage; in any business in interstate commerce; or control any

compimy which is engaged in any business in interstate _comi:nerce.
XI1v.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, pending 2 hearing and determination of the

~ Commission's Application for a Preliminary Injunction, the Defendants, and each of their

16
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financial and brokerage institutions, officers, agents, servan;:s, employees, attorneys-in-fact, and
those persons in active concert or participation with them and all other persons or entities who
.rqceive actual notice of such Order by personal service, facsimile service or otherwise, and each
of them, hold and retain within their conirol, and otherwise prevent, any withdrawal, transfer,
pledge,.en.cumbrance, assign;nent, dissipation, concealment or other dispc‘usal of any assets,
funds, or other property (including money, reat or personal property, securities, commodities,
choses in action or other proﬁerty of any kind whatsoever) of, imld by, or under the direct or
indirect control of the Defendants, including but not limited to, entities owned or controlled by,
related to, or associated or affiliated with the MS Entities including but not limited to, those
entities hsted on Exhibit A, whether beld in any of their names or for any of their ditect or
indirect beneﬁci;al inte;i'est wherever situated, in whatever form such assets may presently exist
and wherever located within the territorial ju:isdicﬁon of the United Stz;tes courts, and directing
each of the financial 6r brokerage institutions, debtors and bailees, or any other pérson or entity
_holding such assets: funds or other _prpperﬁy of the Defendanﬁ to hold or retain within its or his
control and prohibit the withdrawal, removal, transfer or other disposal of any such assets, funds
or other properties including but not limited to, all assets, funds, or other properties held in the
accounts listed in Exhibt B, as weli as eac_h real estate parcel owned directly or indirectly by the
MS Entities iﬁcluding but not ]imited.to, those entities listed on Exhibit A.
XV.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, pending a hearing and deterrﬁination of the
Commission’s Application for a Preliminary Injunction, the Defendants, any person or entity
acﬁné at their direction or on their behalf, and any other third party mcluding but not limited to '

any investor, be and hereby are enjoined and restrained from destroying, altering, concealing or -

17
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‘otherwise interfeﬁng with the access of Plainﬁﬁ' Commission and the receiver to any and all
documents, books, and records that are in the possession, custody or control of the Defendants
and each of their respective officers, agents, employees, servants, achomfantg, financial or |
brokerage institutions, or attorneys-in-fact, su.bsidiaries, affiliates, predecessors, successors and
related entities, including but not limited to, the MS Entities, that refer, reflect or relate to the
;ﬂlegaiions m the.Complaint, including, without limitation, .domnnents., books and records

' n;,fen'ing, reﬂecﬁl;g or relaﬁng.to the Defdants’ finances or business operations, or the offer, '

. purchase or sale of securities and the use of proceeds therefrom; and (2) ordered to provide all
reasonable cooperation to the receiv.el_: in'barrying out his duties set forth herem.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, pending 2 hearing and determination of the
Commission's Application for a Preliminary Injunction, each of the Defen@ants shall file with
this Court and serve upon Plaintiff Commission, within three (3) business days, or within such
extension of time as the Commission agrees to, a verified written accounting signed by each of
the Individual Defendants, and the officers or empfoyees of the MS Entities who are most
knowledgeable about the assets, liabilities and general financial condition ef t_he each of the
Defendants, if any, under penalty of peljury, of

(4] A11 assets, habi]mes and property cmrently held, directly or mdu'ectly, by or for

the benefit of each Defendant, mch}dmg, without hmltauon, bank accounts,-
brokeraée accounts, invegtme'nts, business interests, loans, lines of credit, amd real
and personal property wherever situated, describing each asset and liability, its
current location and amount;

(2)  Allmoney, property, assets and income received by each such Defendant for his

18
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direct or indirect bEneﬁt from the other Defendants, at any time from January 1,..
2005 through the date of such accounting, describing the amount, disposition and .
corrent location of each of the items listed;
(3  Thenames and last lq.xown addresses of all bailees, clébtors, and other persons and
entities ;chat currently are holding the assets, funds or property of each Def@m:
iy . .
‘(4 Al assets, finds, secirrities and real or personal property invested by each such .
Defendant, or any other person controlled by them, and the d'isposiﬁon of such
assets, funds, sécm’iﬁés, real or personal property. .
Bach Individnal Defendant and the officers or employees of the Entity Defqndants who are most .
knowledgeable about the assets, liat'n"]ities and géneral ﬁ;nanciél.condiﬁon of the Defendants, if
any, sha]l verify the Entity Defendant’s accounting and serve suéh swom sta?:ements of as.set
_identi.fying infomaﬁon by hand delivery, facsimile transmission to (212) 336-1524 or overnight
courier service on the Commission’s counsel, David Stc;elﬁng, Es,q:, §ecx1;iﬁes and Exchange
Cormmission, 3" World Financial Center, New York, NY 10281. Each of the Indi;;idual
Defendants i.s required to provide the Commission with azi.accoun.ting for. his own personal
assets, liabilifies and general financial cond'rti(')n, and also provide an accounting for each of the .
Entity Defendants. The Relief Defendnt is required to provide the Commission with an °

accounting for her own personal asséts, liabilities and general financial condition.

XVIL

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Willics Y. Deown ., pending firther

order of this Couﬁ, be and hereby is appointed to act as receiver for the MS Entities including

19
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l;ut not limited to, those entities listed on Exhibit A, to (1) preserve the status quo; (2) ascertain
the true financial condiﬁoﬁ of the MS Entities and the disposition of investor ﬁmcis; 3)
determine the extent of commingling of funds between the MS Entities; (;1) prevent further
dissipation of the property and assets of the MS Entities; (5) prevent the encumbrance or disposal
of property or assets of the MS Entities; (6) preserve the books, records and documents of the
MS Entities; (7) be available to respond to investor inquiries; and (8) determine if the MS
Entities and all entities tht;,y control or have an ownership interest in should undertake a

bankruptéy filing. To effectuate the foregoing, the receiver is hereby empowered to:

b 2

(a) | Take and retain immediate possession and control of all of the assets a1_1d property
of the MS Entities. fncluding but not limited to, those entities listed on Exhibit A,
and all l;ooks, .records ;a,ﬁd documents of MS Entities, and the rights and powers of
it with respect thereto;

(b)  Have exclusive control of, and be made the sole authorized signatory for, all
accounts at any bank, broicerage firm or ﬁnanciai institution that has possession or.
control of any assets or funds of MS Entities includi.ng but not limited to, those

entities listed on Exhibit A;

SR e

‘(¢)  succeed to all rights to manage all properties owned or controlle.d, directty or
indilrectly, by the MS 'Enﬁties, including but not limited to, those entities listed on
' ﬁxhibit A, putsuant to the LLC and operating agré:ement’ relating to each entity;
(d)  Pay from available fuinds necessary business expenses required to preserve the
assets and property of MS Entitiés and all entities they control or have an
ownership interest in, including the books, recor@s, and documents of the

Defendants, notwithstanding the asset freeze imposed above;.

20




Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-DRH Document 26-5 Filed 05/21/10 Page 21 of 32

©
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Take preliminary steps to locate assets that may have been conveyed to third

parties or otherwise concealed;

. Take preliminary steps to ascertain the disposition and use of funds obtained by

the Defendants resulting from the salg of securiti.es issued by the Defendants and
the enﬁﬁes they control; -

Engage and employ persons, including accountants, attom.eys.and é:'cperts, to
assist in the carrying out of the receiver’s duties and résponsibilities herennder;
Take all necessary steps to gain control of the Defendant.s’ interests in assets in
foreign j1.1risdicti'.ons, inclnding but not limited to takmg steps necessary to |
repat':riate foreign assets; and '

Take such further action as the Court shall deem equitable, just and appropriate
under the circumstances upon proper application of the receiver. .

XVIiL ' -

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that no person or entity, including any creditor or .

claimant against aiy of the Defendants, or any person actmg on behalf of such creditor or

clalmant, shall take any action without further order of thls Court to interfere with the takmg

comtrol, possession, or management of the assets, including but not h'mited to the filing of any

Tawsuits, liens or encumbrances or bankruptcy cases to impact the property and assets subject to

this ordelj.

XIX.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendants shall pay the reasonable costs, fees

and expenses of the receiver incurred in conmection with the performance of his duties described
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herein; including but not limited to the redsonable costs, fees and expenses of all persons who
may be engaged or employed by the receiver to assist him in caﬁying out his duties and
obligations. All applications for costs, fees and expénses of the receiver and those employed by
him shall be made by application to the Court setting forth in reasonable detail the nature of such
costs, fees and expenses and shall conform to the Fee Guidelines that will be supplied by the
_US. Securities and Exchange Commission.
Xx. | .,
IT IS F.URTHER'ORDERED that discovery is expedited as follows: pursuant to Rules 26, '
30, 31, 33, 34, 36 and 45 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and without the requirement of :
a meeting imrsuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 26(f), the parties and ﬂie Teceiver may: '
. (1) Take depositi'ons, subject to two (2) calendar days’ notice by facsimile or
otherwise; . ' .
(2)  Obtain the production of documents, within threé (3) calendar days from service
By facsimile or otherwise of a request or subprmna 1.:rom any persons or enfities,
iricluding non-party witnesses; and
(3)  Service of any discoverj requests, notices, or subpoenas may be' made by personal
service, facsimile, overnight courier, or ﬁrét—cfass mail on an irldividual'-, entity or
the mdmdual’s or entity’s attorney; and
(4)  Thereceiver may take chscovery in this actlon w1fhout further order of the Court.
XXI.
ITIS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of th13 Order and the papers supporting the

Commission’s Apphcatlon be served upon the Defendants and Relief Defendant onor before

mggg_q_, April_3\| 2010, by personal delivery, facsimile, overnight courier, or first-class

22




Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-DRH Document 26-5 Filed 05/21/10 Page 23 of 32

mail.
XX,
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendants and Relief Defendant shall deliver

any opposing papers in fesponse to the Order to Show Cause above no later than

T\M.s .kg.,.; , April 222010, at 4:00 p.m. Service shall be made by delivering the papers,

using the most expc;iitious means available, by that date and time, to the New York Regional

Ofﬁc; of the Commission at 3 World Financial Center, Room 4300, New York, New York

10281, Atin: David Stoelting Esg., or such other place as counsel for the Commission may direct

in writing. The Commission shall have until Naesda 5 , April2q, 2010, at 5:00 p.m.,

to serve, by the most expeditions ‘means available, any reply papers upon the Defendants and

Relief Defendants, or upon .their counsel, if counsel shall have made an appearance in this action. -
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Order shall be, and is, binding upon the

Defendants and Relief Defendants and each of their respective officers, agents, servants,

persons in active concert or

employees, attomeys-in-fact, subsidiaﬁes,%ﬁﬁliaies and thoge

service, or otherwise.

D STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

I.ssued at: A : 0o
April 4 2010
Albany, New York
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Exhxbxt A
List of Known Entities Controlled By McGinn and/or Smith

107™ Associates LLC Trust 07
107" Associates LLC
74 State Street Capital LP
Acquisition Trust 03
Capital Center Credit Corporation
CMS Financial Services '
Cruise Charter Ventures LLC dba YOLO Cruises
Cruise Charter Ventures Trust 08
First Advisory Income Notes LLC
First Commercial Capital Corp.
First Excelsior Income Notes LLC
First Independent Income Notes LLC
FirstLine Junior Trust 07
FirstLine Senior Trust 07
FirstLine Trust 07
Fortress Trust 08
. Integrated Excellence Junior Trust
Integrated Excellence Junior Trust 08 -
Integrated Excellence Senior Trust
Integrated Excellence Senior Trust 08
_IP Investors
James J. Carroll Charitable Fund
JGC Trust 00
K C Acquisition Corp.
KMB Cable Holdings LLC
Luxury Cruise Center, Inc.
Luxury Cruise Holdings, LLC
Luxury Cruise Receivables, LLC
M & S Partiners
McGinn, Smith & Co.
McGinn, Smith Acceptance-Corp.
McGinn, Smith Advisors
" McGinn, Smith Alarm Trading
McGinn, Smith Asset Management Corp.
McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings
. McGinn, Smith Capital Management LLC
McGinn, Smith Financial Services Corp.
McGinn, Smith FirstLine Funding LLC
McGinn, Smith Funding LLC
McGinn, Smith Group-LLC
McGinn, Smith Holdings LLC
McGinn, Smith Independent Services Corp.
McGinn, Smith Licensing Co.
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McGinn, Smith Transaction Funding Corp.

Mr. Cranberry LLC

MS Partners .

MSFC Security Holdings LLC

NEI Capital LLC

Pacific Trust 02

Pine Street Capital Management LLC

Pine Street Capital Partners LP ' :
Point Capital LLC : o ' o f
Prime Vision Communications LLC .

Prime Vision Communication Management Keys Cove LLC
Prime Vision Communications of Cutler Cay LLC

Prime Vision Funding of Cutler Cove LLC .

Prime Vision Funding of Key Cove LLC

RTC Trust 02 . _
SAT Trust 00 _ i
SAI Trust 03 ¥
Security Participation Trust I
Security Participation Trust IT
Security Participation Trust III
Security Participation Trust IV
Seton Hall Associates

TDM Cable Funding LLC
TDM Cable Trust 06

TDM Luxury Cruise Trust 07
TDM Verifier Trust 07

TDM Verifier Trust 07R
TDM Verifier Trust 08

TDM Verifier Trust 08R
TDM Verifier Trust 09

TDM Verifier Tmst 11 .
TDMM Benchmark Trust 09 _,
TDMM Cable Funding LLC ) ' L
TDMM Cable Jr Trust 09 ' .
TDMM Cable Sr Trust 09
Third Albany Income Notes LLC
Travel Liquidators, LLC

‘White Glove Cruises LLC
‘White Glove LLC

.o
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EXHIBIT B
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Exhibit B

Known Bank Accounts
Institution Account Number Name of Account Holder Account Name 2
Mercantile Bank I 998 107th Assoc. LLC Trust 07
Mercantile Bank EERES1087  |107th Associates LLC
M&T Bank —MEBREN6E50 _ |107th Associates LLC
M&T Bank 478 74 State Street Capital LP Operating
M&T Bank ‘HR7062 74 State Street Capital LP ;
'M&T Bank “JG288 | Acquisition Trust 03 Operating Accdunt
‘Whitney National Bank D335 Benchmark Communication LLC
Mé&T Bank D305 Capital Center Credit Corp Openating
M&T Bank " 2250 Capital Center Credit Corp Careclub Depository, 99 Pine St
. Special Account Michael Lewy
JPMorganChase B.557 |Capital Center Credit Corp Attn: David Rees )
) C/O MCGINN SMITH & COINC
NFS/Fidelity BEPRE:178 | Capital Center Credit Corp ATTN DAVID P REES
. : Capital Center Credit Corp c/o McGinn Smith &
JPMorgauChase Bs17  (Co
Monterey Bank -JE6854 Charter Cruise, Ventures dba YOLO Cruises
MET Bank 3133 CMS Financial '
M&T Bank 985 |CMS Financial Services Corp.
M&T Bank 2064 CMS Financial Services Corp. .
Monterey Bank W6R46 Cruise Charter Ventures dba YOLO Cruises
Mercantile Bank 3972 Cruise Charter Ventures LLC
Mercantile Bank 1307 Cruise Charter Ventures LLC
Mercantile Bank ) 208 |Cruise Charter Ventures Trust 08
M&T Bank ~— MEB528 __|First Advisory Income Notes Operating
M&T Bank il g First Advisory Income Nates Escrow
M&T Bank D147 |First Excelsior Income Notes LLC Alarm Accum Account
M&T Bank - b 139  {First Excelsior ncome Notes LLC Operating
Charter One Bank BEENEG3-8  |First Excclsior Income Notes LLC Escrow
JPMorganChase 028 |Fisst Bxcelsior Income Notes LLC
NFS/Fidelity BEEERE280 _ |First Excelsior Income Notes LLC .
M&T Bank BEEG013  |First Independent Income Notes Operating
. M&T Bank : 279 |First lndependent Income Notes Monitoring Contract Accum
Charter One Bank D036 |First Independent Income Notes Timothy McGinn
JPMorganChase T893 First Independent Income Notes
JPMorganChase 0037 First Independent Income Notes
NFS/Fidelity . . 034 |First Independent Income Notes
o . McGinn Smith Capital Holdings
Mercantile Bank EREEN)521  |FisstLine Senior Trust 07 DTD 5/19/07 Corp. TTEE
M&T Bank ~REMMN5028  |FirstLine Sr Trust 07
" MécT Bank —JElS366  |Firstline St Trust 07 Series B . ~
Mercantile Bank JE0733  |FirstLine Sr Trust 07 Series B McGinn Smith & Co Inc Trustee
M&T Bank BR010  |FirstLine Trust 07 .
. McGinn Smith Capital Holdings
Mercantile Bank 910 |FirstLine Trust 07 DTD 5/1907 Corp. TTEE
McGinn Smith & Co Inc Trustee,
Mercantile Bank B2 |FirstLine Trust 07 Series B UAD 1071607
M&T Bank M358 |FirstLine Trust 07 Series B
c/o McGinn Smith Capital
M&T Bank BEEERNG413  |Fortress Trust 08 Holdings Corp.
McGinn Smith Capital Holdings
Mercantile Bank 187  |Fortress Trust 08 UTD 9/10/08 Corp-TTEE
M&.T Bank G165 |integrated Excellence Jr Trust
) _ |McGinn Smith Capital Holdings
Mercantile Bank BB:5>+  |Integrated Excellence Jr Trust 08 DTD 5/28/08 Corp- TTEE
M&T Bank SHE;17:  |Integrated Excellence Sr Trust

- e
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Exhibit B
Known Bank Accounts
Institution Account Number " Name of Account Holder Account Name 2
: McGinn Smith Capnal Holdings
Mercantile Baok BEEhoss  |Integrated Excellence St Trust 08 DTD 5/27/08 | Corp - TTEE
M&T Bank TEEGEGE  |IP Investors LL.C i
M&T Bank 3783 |James J. Carroll Charitabls Fund
M&T Bank ERGE1S | : “SS__|Operating ¢/o McGinn Smith
Mercantile Bank W1 674 /€ [ Luxury Cruise Center Inc )
Mercantile Bank B4 |Luxury Cruise Center Inc ]
Mercantile Bank . Luxury Cruise Charter Inc. Payables Pl
—— M&T Bank
JPMorganChase %43 McGinn Smith & Co
JPMorganChase 670  |McGinn Smith & Co
- MCGINN SMITH & CO DELIGIANNIS
NFS/Fidelity 0157  |[MASTER ACCOUNT -
] _ MCGINN SMITH & CO AVERAGE PRICE
- NFS/Fidelity 035 |ACCOUNT
JPMorganChase EE4300 McGinn Smith & Co Capital A/C
McGinn Smith & Co Corporate Bond A/C Attn:
JPMorganChase 302 David Rees
: . . — |McGinn Smith & Co Deposit Account Attn:
JPMorganChase _IBERs06 David Rees
. McGinn Smith & Co Error Account Aftn: Dayid
JPMorganChase EEER305  |Rees
McGinn Smith & Co Firm Trading A/C Attn:
JPMorganChase -301 David Rees
’ McGinn Stith & Co Govt Bond A/C Attn. David
JPMorganChase . 303 |Recs
NFS/Fidelity EEEERI007  |[MCGINN SMITH & COINC .
o ~ |MCGINN SMITH & COINC ALBANY BTAM
NFS/Fidelity ESEEEN05!  |S DIFFERENCE
"~ [MCGINN SMITH & CO INC ALBANYBTAM
NFS/Fidelity ESSNE0043  |MASTER. .ACCOUNT
NFS/Fidelity B 007  [MCGINN SMITH & CO INC_DAVID L SMITH
. MCGINN SMITH & CO INC DELIGIANNIS §
NFS/Fidelity 175  |DIFFERENCE ’
) -~ IMCGINN SMITH & CO INC NYC BTAM -
NFS/Fidelity ESEERRN03%6 |UNALLOCATED
: MCGINN SMITH & CO NG REVENUE
NFS/Fidelity EEED728  |ACCOUNT
— [MCGINN SMITH & CO INC ALBANY BTAM
NFS/Fidelity EEEENN050 |UNALLOCATED .
B MCGINN SMITH & COINCBOYLAN $
NFS/Fidelity EEERN0205 .|DIFFERENCE
B MCGINN SMITH & CO INCBOYLAN
NFS/Fidelity JENEh)9]  |MASTER ACCOUNT
5 . MCGINN SMITH & CO INC DELIGIANNIS
NFS/Fidelity EEpis3  [UNALLOCATED
" |MCGINN SMITH & CO INCERROR -
NFS/Fidelity B s  |ACCOUNT
MCGINN SMITH & CO INC RABINOVICH §
NFS/Fidelity B3RN0 - [DIFFERENCE
j MCGINN SMITH & CO INC RABINOV]CH
NFS/Fidelity 21 [MASTER ACCOUNT
. MCGINN SMITH & CO mcmmowc:-l
248 |UNALLOCATED

NES/Fidelity

s

A AT e
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ExhibitB
Known Bank Accounts
Institution Account Number Name of Account Holder Account Name 2

MCGINN SMITH & CO INC SANCHIRICO 5
NFS/Fidelity ESeaem)140  |DIFFERENCE
: i MCGINN SMITH & CO INC SANCHIRICO
NFS/Fidelity B3>  |MASTER ACCOUNTS

MCGINN SMITH & CO INC SANCHIRICO
NFS/Fidelity BN 159  |UNALLOCATED

MOGINN SMITH & CO INC SYNDICATE
NFES/Fidelity B 108  |ACCOUNT

McGinn Smith & Co Municipal-Bond Account

JPMorganChase ESE:30¢  |Atn: David Rees
JPMorganChase | H Mchn Smith & Co Reserve A/C Residual Bal
NFS/Fidelity ESPRSG010 - (MCGINN SMITH & CO RISKLESS PRINCIPAL
JPMorganChase 307 McGinn Smith & Co Syndicate A/C
M&T Bank -1081 McGinn Smith & Company Dividend
M&T Bank " BP4734  |McGinn Smith & Company
ME&T Bank : 560 |McGinn Smith Advisors LLC
“M&T Bank 044 |McGmn Smith Alarm Trading LLC

o MSCH Paying Agent for Vldsoﬁ
M&T Bank Bl351 |McGinn Smith Capital Holdings Tnc.
: ’ Payment Agent for Vigilant
Mé&T Bank BB 551 |McGion Smith Capitsl Holdings Privacy Corp.
M&T Bank 803 |McGinn Smith Capital Holdings

JPMorganChase SRS 73 McGim Smith Capital Holdings
NFS/Fidelity NS734 : |MCGINN SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS
M&T Bank BEb753  [McGion Smith Capital Holdings Corp_ " Hannan Reserve Account
Mercantile Bank “Iic35  |McGitn Smith Funding LLC
Monterey Bank IB6838 . [McGinn Smith Funding LLC
M&T Bank ERREY25 | McGinn Smith Holdings LLC

e - [MCGINN SMITH INCENTIVE PL CUST IRA
NFS/Fidelity ESNENo4;  |OF TIMOTHY MCGINN

JPMorganChase 246 McGinn Smith Incentive Savings Plan
Mercantile Bank BE>022  |McGinn Smith Independent Services Corp
M&.T Bank — E6975 [McGinn Smith Independent Services Corp
M&T Bank -JS05]1 [McGinn Smith Licensing Company LLC

Mercantile Bank ‘TE083  |McGinn Smith Transaction Funding Corp
M&T Bank %207 McGinn Smith Transaction Funding Corp .

Mercantile Bank 857 |McGinn Smith Transaction Funding Corp - | 2nd Offering Account
ME&T Bank B 036  |McGinn Smith Acceptance Corp '

L McGinn, Tim (Unjon Bank of California Cust
* |Adams Keegan Retirenient Svgs Plan, FBO Tim
JPMorganChase Eb25:  (McGinn A/C # [EEES003)
NFS/Fidelity ER745  [McGinn; Timothy M.
M&T Bank BE675  [McGion, Timothy M.
M&T Bank 504  |McGinn, Timothy M.

Mercantile Bank BEE17] MR Cranbeny LLC c/o Timothy McGinn
“NFS/Fidelity BEEN27>  |MR Cranberry LLC :
M&T Bank 5421 |MSFC Security Holdings LLC

Mercantile Bank BEH220  |NEI Capital LLC . .

. M&T Bank -Ibs33 [Pecific Trust 02 Operating
M&T Bank D626 (Pine Street Capital Management LLC

" M&T Bank " MB478 |Pine Street Capital Partners
. M&T Bank FREEP535  |Pine Street Capital Partners LP Operating

Prime Vision Comrunication Mgmt Keys Cove

Mercantile Bank EEbes7 |LLC /o McGinn Smith & Co

Bank of Florida 5976 Prime Vision Communications LLC

T TN

vt
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Exhibit B
Known Bank Accounts
Institution Account Number Name of Account Holder Account Name 2
Mercantile Bank 698 [Primé Vision Communications of Cutler Cay LLO /o McGinn Smith & Co
Mercantile Bank 0518  |Prime Vision Funding of Cutler Cove LLC c/o McGinn Smith & Co
Mercantile Bank 529  |Prime Vision Funding of Key Cove LLC ¢/o McGinn Smnh & Co
M&T Bank — BBS767  |RICTrust 02 Accum
M&T Bank . 775 RTC Trust 02 Operating
. JPMorganChase. 792 RTC Trust II ) .
M&T Bank 635 SAI Trust 00
Charter One Bank 23-3  |SAI Trust 00
M&T Bank 3066 - |SAI Trust 03 r
ME&T Bank 20 SAI Trust 03 Sr
* M&T Bank Security Participation Trust 1
M&T Bank . 410 |Security Participation Trust II Accumn
M&T Bank YSSEN0788 |Security Participation TrustII Operating
M&T Bank BEIME2123-  |Security Participation Trust Il Operating
ME&T Bank 115 Security Participation Trust I - Accum
M&T Bank 5460 Security Participation Trust IV
. Charter One Bank ESEBRN023-6  |Security Participation Trust Oper .
(\ \ M&T Bank — 52 [Seton Hall Associates McGimn & Smith
/\,¢ NFS/Fidelity “EEMMEND208 _|Smith, David L.
' Q—“V o M&T Bank . '“955 Smith, David L.
e oq'b  NFS/Fidelity . | JESESSN916 |Smith Lynn A.
ad NFS/Fidelity EERER)012  |Smith, Lynn A.
i Bank of America " Smith, Lynn A. .
Mercantile Bank ESEENERO507  |TDM Cable Funding LLC c/o McGinn Smith & Co
Mercantile Bank ESD573 | TDM Cable Funding LLC/ TDM Cable Trust06 ¢/o McGinn Smith & Co
i . TDM Cable Funding LL.C TDM Verifier Trust 07 .
M&T Bank Ells5  |openting - ' 'TDM Verifier Trust 07 Operating |
Mé&T Bank S 500 TDM Cable Funding LLC Trust 06 Account Trust 06 Account
ME&T Bank ~EBE>34 | TDM Luxury Cruise Trust 07 ‘
McGinn Smith Capital Heldings
Mercantile Bank . 086 |TDM Luxury Cruise Trust 07 DTD 7/16/07 Corp-TTEE
Mercantile Bank S 437  |TDM Verifier Trust 07 Bserow
Mercantile Bank FEEE216  |{TDM Verifier Trust 07R -
M&T Bank E738 | TDM Verifier Trust 08
) McGinn Smith Capital Holdings
Mercantile Bank BBl 030 | TDM Verifier Trust 08 DTD 12/11/07 Corp - TTEE
) McGinn Smith Capital Holdings
Mercantile Bank 132 TDM Verifier Trust 08R DTD 1211 1107 Corp- TTEE
M&T Bank EEBRENIG736 | TDM Verifier Trust 09 .
. . ' McGinn Smith Capitzl Holdings
Mercantile Bank 'EEEEER007  |TDM Verifier Trust 09 DTD 12/15/08 Corp- TTEE .
" M&T Bank /064 |TDM Verifier Trust 11 -
M&T Bank 409 TDM Verifier Trust 11
M&T Bank EEEEN7056 | TDMM Benchrmark Trust 09
Mercantile Bank | IMP077 | TDMM Cable Funding LLC .
McGinn Smith Capital Holdings
Mercantile Bank M 139 TDMM Cable Jr Tr 09 DTD 1/16/09 Corp - TTEE '
M&T Bank " ES728_ |TDMM Cable Jr Trust 09
. ) . MeGinn Smith Capital Holdmgs
Mercantile Bank BER150 |TDMM Cable SrTr 09 DTD 1/16/09 Corp- TTEE
~ M&T Bank TDMM Cable Sr Trust 09
M&T Bank Third Albany Income Notes Escrow
NFS/Fidelity Third Albany Income Notes
. __ M&T Bank Third Albany Income Notes Operating
M&T Bank Third Albany Income Notes Alarm Accumn
JPMorganChase ' 0z Third Albany Income Notes
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Account Name 2

NFS/Fidelity

TTEE David L Smith & Lynn A
EESESNI671 ©  |Smith, Irrev Tr U/ABEN04
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff, :
V. : 10 Civ. 475 (GLS)

McGINN, SMITH & CO., INC.,

McGINN, SMITH ADVISORS LLC,

McGINN, SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORP.,
FIRST ADVISORY INCOME NOTES, LLC,
FIRST EXCELSIOR INCOME NOTES, LLC,
FIRST INDEPENDENT INCOME NOTES, LLC,
THIRD ALBANY INCOME NOTES, LLC,
TIMOTHY M. MCGINN; AND

DAVID L. SMITH,

Defendants, and
LYNN A. SMITH,

Relief Defendant.

CONSENT ORDER EXTENDING
DATES IN ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE

WHEREAS, on April 20, 2010, plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “Commission”) commenced this action by filing a Complaint, Order to Show Cause,
and other papers, and, on that same day, the Court issued an Order to Show Cause,
Temporary Restraining Order, and Order Freezing Assets and Granting Other Relief (the
“Order”), that, among other things, temporarily froze the assets of the Defendants and the
Relief Defendant; and set dates for a preliminary injunction hearing and for the
submission of briefs;

NOW, THEREFORE:
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I

IT IS ORDERED that the Order is modified so that the preliminary injunction
hearing referenced in Part I of the Order shall be scheduled for May 18, 2010, at 10:00
a.m.

I

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Part XXII of the Order is modified so that
Defendants and Relief Defendant shall serve any opposing papers in response to the
Order no later than May 7, 2010, and the Commission shall have until May 14, 2010 to
serve any reply papers upon the Defendants and Relief Defendant.

III.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Order is modified so that the verified
written accountings provided for in Part XVI of the Order shall be filed and served on or
before April 28, 2010.

Iv.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that except as expressly modified herein, the

Order shall remain in full force and effect until further order of this Court.
V.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain jurisdiction of this

matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of the Order and this Consent Order, and

for all other purposes.



Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-DRH Document 26-6 Filed 05/21/10 Page 3 of 5

SO ORDERED:

Dated: ,2010

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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timesunion.com

Federal raids targeted Albany brokerage firm

FBI and IRS went to homes, offices of McGinn, Smith officials last week in Albany and Florida

By BRENDAN J. LYONS, Senior writer
Click byline for more stories by writer.
First published: Tuesday, April 27, 2010

ALBANY -- Federal agents from the FBI and Internal Revenue Service recently conducted a
series of raids in connection with a criminal investigation of McGinn, Smith & Co., a longtime
Albany brokerage firm that has been accused of fraud by the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

The federal raids early last week at the offices and homes of McGinn, Smith's top officials,
Timothy M. McGinn and David L. Smith, took place at several locations in the Albany area,
including the company's former Pine Street headquarters, and in south Florida, according to
two people briefed on the law enforcement activity.

Search warrants related to the case were filed under seal in U.S. District Court in Albany and
South Florida. But the raids confirm that federal authorities have expanded their interest in
McGinn, Smith's business dealings from a civil action to a criminal investigation.

Spokespersons for the FBI and U.S. Attorney's office in Albany, where the case is being
spearheaded, declined to comment.

Last week, the SEC filed complaints in Albany and Miami accusing McGinn, Smith and their
various companies of engaging in "an ongoing fraud."

The complaint alleges they deceived an untold number of people while raising more than
$136 million in unregistered debt offerings and trusts that were sold to some 900 investors.

"The offering fraud already has caused significant investor losses, and this emergency action
is intended to stop the fraud and preserve the status quo for the benefit of the victims," the
SEC's complaint says. "They told investors that their hard-earned money would be invested
and that the profits would depend on the spread between the cost of the investment and
the rate of return. Instead, the defendants secretly funneled investor money to entities they
owned or controlled, even though this was not permitted.”

The firm's dealings came under scrutiny last fall during the criminal trial of former state
Senate Majority Leader Joseph L. Bruno, who had been retained by McGinn, Smith as a
consultant. McGinn, who lives in Niskayuna and is chairman of the board, testified at Bruno's
trial as a government witness that he co-founded the company in 1980 and engaged largely
in investment banking.

"McGinn, Smith trades on all of the securities exchanges in the United States with the

timesunion.com/.../storyprint.asp?Story...
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exception of commodities," McGinn testified on Nov. 3. "(The firm) raises capital for various
businesses and nonprofits, health care-related, security-alarm related, cable-TV related,
various other industries, and has done so for 30 years."

There is no indication in the SEC's complaint that the investigation of the firm is tied to
Bruno. The former state senator, who faces sentencing next week for his conviction on
federal corruption charges, was hired by McGinn, Smith in 1992 to develop "money
management relationships with labor unions (and) pension funds," McGinn testified.

The SEC has filed hundreds of pages of documents in its civil action accusing the firm of
numerous breaches of federal securities regulations. They said the firm began receiving e-
mails from investors last year who feared they had been duped in a "Ponzi scheme."

As of last September investors were owed $84 million from a fund that had less than
$500,000 cash.

"Nonetheless, McGinn and Smith have continued to raise money from investors, using similar
misrepresentations, as recently as December 2009," the SEC wrote. "During the first few
months of 2010, contrary to representations to investors, McGinn and Smith have continued
to drain what little cash remains through payment of 'fees' to themselves."

An attorney for the firm has not responded to a request for comment.

The SEC's complaint also names Smith's wife, Lynn. The SEC claims the firm violated federal
law by selling unregistered securities to unqualified investors and then mismanaged the

money in a scheme dating to at least 2003. McGinn, Smith's assets were frozen by a federal
judge in Albany and an attorney has been appointed to oversee the firm's remaining assets.

Brendan J. Lyons can be reached at 454-5547 or by e-mail at blyons@timesunion.com

timesunion.com/.../storyprint.asp?Story...
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

Filed 05/21/10 Page 1 of 2

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,

MCcGINN, SMITH & CO., INC.,
McGINN, SMITH ADVISORS, LLC,
MCcGINN, SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORP.,
FIRST ADVISORY INCOME NOTES, LLC,
FIRST EXCELSIOR INCOME NOTES, LLC,
FIRST INDEPENDENT INCOME NOTES, LLC,
THIRD ALBANY INCOME NOTES, LLC,
TIMOTHY M. MCGINN, AND
DAVID L. SMITH,

Defendants, and
LYNN A. SMITH,

Relief Defendant.

- 10 Civ. 457 GLS-DRH

- NOTICE OF

- DEPOSITIONS

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that, pursuant to Rules 26 and 30 of the Federal Rules

of Civil Procedure, Section XX of the Order to Show Cause entered April 20, 2010, and

the Consent Order entered on May 7, 2010, plaintiff Securities and Exchange

Commission, by its attorneys, will take the deposition upon oral examination of the

following individuals:

NAME DATE LOCATION
David L. Smith May 25, 2010 Phillips Lytle LLP
10:00 a.m. 30 South Pearl Street
Albany, NY 12207
Timothy M. May 26, 2010 Phillips Lytle LLP
McGinn 10:00 a.m. 30 South Pearl Street
Albany, NY 12207
Lynn A. Smith May 27, 2010 Phillips Lytle LLP
10:00 a.m. 30 South Pearl Street
Albany, NY 12207
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The depositions will be recorded by sound, sound-and-visual and/or stenographic

means and will continue day to day until completed.

Dated: New York, New York
May 17, 2010

s/David Stoelting

Attorney Bar Number: 516163

Attorney for Plaintiff

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
New York Regional Office

3 World Financial Center, Suite 400

New York, New York 10281-1022

Telephone: (212) 336-0174

Fax: (212) 336-1324

E-mail: StoeltingD @sec.gov

Of Counsel:
Michael Paley
Kevin McGrath
Lara Mehraban
Linda Arnold
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,

McGINN, SMITH & CO., INC.,

McGINN, SMITH ADVISORS LLC, :

McGINN, SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORP.,

- FIRST ADVISORY INCOME NOTES, LLC,

. FIRST EXCELSIOR INCOME NOTES, LLC,
FIRST INDEPENDENT INCOME NOTES, LLC,
THIRD ALBANY INCOME NOTES, LLC, -
TIMOTHY M. MCGINN; AND-

DAVID L. SMITH,

Defendants, and
LYNN A. SMITH,

" Relief Dgfendant.

10 Civ. 475 (GLS)

~ PLAINTIFF’S FIRST REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION OF
DOCUMENTS TO DEFENDANT S TIMOTHY M. MCGINN AND DAVID SMITH

Pursuant to Rule 34 of the.Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and Paragraph XX of the

Order to Show Cause entered April 20, 2010, plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission

requests that defendants Timothy M. McGinn and David L. Smith produce the following

documents at the Commission’s offices at 3 World Financial Center, Suite 400, New York, N.Y.

10281, on or before May 5, 2010.
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INSTRUCTIONS

1. Each Request requires the production of each responsive document in its.entirety;
including all non-identical cdpies{ drafts, and identical coi)ies containing different handwritten
nc;taﬁons, wit.ho-ixt abbreviation, expurgation, or redaction. |

' 2. If any document sough;t by t}ns Request is withheld under a claim of privilege
(inqluding work product), then: (a) identify each such document by stating: (1) the type of
&ocument; (ii) the general subject matter of the document; and (iii) such other information as is
sufficient to 'idenﬁt.'y the document for a subpoena duces tecum, includirig, without limitation, the
author of the document, the addressee of the docum-en;t and, where not apparent, the relationship
| of the author and addressee to one another, the number of pages, its present custodian, and each |
person to whom the doctimgﬁ.t ;)_r ‘substance of the document iaroducﬁon was communicated, in
whole or in part; and (iii) identify the nature of the privilege and all facts upon which that
assertion is based.

3. If any document sought by this Request once was, but rio longer is, within a
responding party’s possession, control or custody, please identify each such document and its
present or last known custodian; and. state: (a) the .reason why the document is not being
prod.u'ced; and (b) the date of the loss, destrucﬁon, discarding, theft or other disposal of the

document.

4. No part of the document request shall be left unanswered merely because an

 objection is interposed to another part of the document request.

5. Unless otherwise indicated, this Request seeks documents from January 1, 2003

onward.
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6. Thi.vs..Request is ongoing m nature, and the responding party should continue to

produce responsive docume;lts as they are found or created on an ongoing ba;sis. |
DEFINITIONS -

_ “Communication” mc_aﬂs. any transmittal of hﬁqmaﬁqn (in the form of facts, ideas,
inquiries, or otherwise).

“Concerning” means relating to, referring t-o, describing, évidencmg; or constituting.

“Document” is defined to be synonymous in meaning and .equél in scope to the usage of
this term in Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 34(a), including without limitation audio files,
voicemail messages, electronic spreadsheet; and draﬁs of electronic spreadsheets or other
computerized -data, including email messages (deleted or otherwise, and whether located at your
offices or at yoﬁr empléyees’ residences or property, or on central or official databases, your
servers and backup servers, local databases, intemnet-based e-mail servers, individual employees’
hard drives, discs or personal digital assistants), notes, memor@dm work papers, paper files,
desk files, draft workpa_pers). A draft or non-identical copy-is'a separate document within the
meaning of this
term.

.“FAIN” shall mean First Advisory Income Notes, LLC, as well as any subsidiaries,
predecessors, successors or affiliated entities, and an-y present and former directors, officers,
employees, agents, attorneys, consultt;nts, representatives and independent contractors of the
foregoing entities.

“FE]N” shall mean First Excelsior Income Notes, LLC, as well as any subsidiaries,

- predecessors, Successors or affiliated entities, and any presént and former directors, officers,
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employees, agents, attomeys; consu_ltaiits, representatives and independent contractors of the’
' foregding entities.
“FIIN” shall mean First Independent Income Notes, LLC, as well as any subsidiaries,
predecessors, successors or gfﬁliated entities, and any presént and fonher directors, officers,
* employees, agents, attorneys, consultants, representatives and independent confractors of the
foregoing entities. . |
“Immediate Family” shall mean parents, former or current spouse, sibling, chil&ren,
grandchildren. '
“Lynn Smith” shall mean Lynn A. Smith é,nd any person or entity acting oﬁ her behalf.
“McGinn” shall mean Timothy M. McGinn and any persor.x or entity acﬁng on his behalf.
“McGinn Smith Entities” or “McGinn Smith Entity” shall mean all of _(;r any of the
eﬁtities known as McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc., Mchn, Sm1th Advisors, LLC,I and Mc(_}inn,
Smith Capital Holdings Corp., as well as any entity or trust in whlch any of them, Smith, and/or
McGinn have or had a controlling interest, any subsidiaries, predecessors, successors or affiliated
..entit_ies,’ and any present and former directors, officers, employees, age;nts, trustees,_ atfomeys,
‘consultants, representatives and independent contractorls of the foregoing entities, including, but
not limited to, the entities identified in Exhibit A to the Order to Show Cause, Temporary
| Restraining Order, and Order Freezing Assets and Granting Other Relief, entered on April 20,
2610.
“Smith” shall mean David L. Smith and any person or entity acting on his behalf.
“TAIN” shall mean Third Albany Income Notes, LLC, as well as any subsidiaries,
predecessors, successors or affiliated entities, and any present and former directors, officers,

employees, agents, attorneys, consultants, representatives and independent contractors of the
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foregoing entities.

DOCUMENTS REQUESTED

1.~ All documents conperﬁing FAIN.

2. All.documents c_oncemiﬂg FEIN.

3. All documents concerning FIIN.

4,  All documents concerning TAIN.

'5. Al documents concérning any McGinn Smith Entity.
6. All documents concerning any loans by any McGinn Smith Entify, including but
_not limite'd~ to the dates, amounts, and terms of all such loans, to, or on behalf of any of the
following persons or eﬁtities:
a. McGinn ;
b. Smith;
c. Lynn Smith;
d. Any member of the Immediate Family of McGinn, Smith or Lynp Smith;
e. Thomas Livingston;
f Matthew Rogers; and
g any McGinn Smith Entity.
7.  All documents éonceming any loans to, or on behalf of, any McGinn Smith Entity
from, or on behalf of, any of the following persons or entities:

a, McGinn; |
b. Smith;

‘c. Lynn Smith;
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d  any member of the Immediate Family of McGinn, Smith or Lynn Smith;

e. Thomas Livin?ston;

f Matthew Rogers; and

g any McGinn Smith Entity.

8- Al dacuments concerning any transfer.of money, stocks, or any other asset from
any McGinn Smith Entity to any of the following persons or entities:

a. McGinn, including, but not limited to, all bank, brokerage or other
investment accounts held at any time in the name of, or for the benefit of, McGinn;

b. Smith, including, butlnot limiied to, all bank, brokerage or other

o in.vestmgnt accounts held at any ﬁmé in the name of, or for the beneﬁt of, Smith;

c. ‘ Lynn Smith, including, but not limited to, all bank, brokerage or other
investment accounts held at any time in the name of, or for the benefit of, Lynn Smith;

d.  any member of the Immediate Family of MeGinn, Smith or Lynn Smith,
including, but not limited to, all bank, brokerage or other investment accounts held at any
time in the name of, or for- the benefit of such Immediate F an;ily member;

€. Thomas Livingston, including, but not limited to, all bank, brokergge or
other investment accounts held at any time in the n;me of, or for the benefit of,

- Livingston;

f Matthew Rogers, including, but not limited to, all bank, brokerage or other
investment accounts held at any time in the name of, or for the benefit of, Rogers; and

g any McGinn Smith Entity.

9. All documents concerning any transfer of money, stocks, or any other asset to any

McGinn Smith Entity from any of the following persons or entities:
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a. MCGinn? i1_1cluding, but not limifed to, all bank, brokerage or other
investment aécounts held at any time in the name of, or for the benefit of, McGinn,

b. Smith, including, but not limited to, all bank, brokerage or other |
investment accounts held-at any time in the name of, or for the benefit of, Smith;

c. Lynn Smith, including, But not limited to; all bank, brokerage or other
investment accounts held at any time in the name of, or for the benefit off, Lynn Smith;

d. any member of the Immediate Family of McGinn, Smith or Lynn Smith,
including, but not limited to, all bank, brokerage or o..t.her investment accounts held at any
time in the name ‘of,.‘ or fot the benefit of such Immediate Family member;

e. Thomas Livingston, including, 'but not limited to, 'all bank, brokerage or
other investment accounté held at any tiipe in the name of, or for the benefit of,
Livingston;

L - Matthew Rogers,'includi.ng, but not limited to, all bank, brokeragg or other _
investment accounts held at any time in the name of, or for the benefit of, Rogers; and

g any McGinn'Smith Entity.

10.  All decuments concerning any investment in any McGinn Smith Entity by any of
the following persons or Ientities:

a. McGinn, including, but not iimited to, all bank, brokerage or other
investment accounts held at any time in th.e name of, or for the benefit of, McGinn;

b. Smith, including, but not limited to, all bank, brokerage or other
investrment accounts held at any time in the name of, or for the benefit of, Smith;

c. Lynn Smith, including, but not limited to, all bank, brokerage or other

investment accounts held at any time in the name of, or for the benefit of, Lynn Smith;



" Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-DRH Document 26-8 Filed 05/21/10 Page 8 of 12

d. any member of the Immediate Family of McGinn, Smith or Lynn Smith,

" including, but not limited to, all bank, brokerage or other investment accounts held atany -
time in the name oi';. or for the benefit of sucil Immediate Family meﬁber;

e. ° Thomas Livingston, including, but not limited to, ali bank, brokerage or
other investment accounts held at any time in the name of, o'r for .the benefit of,
_I.:ivingston;

f Matthew Rogers, inplufiing, .but not limited to,.all bank, .brokerage or other
investment accounts- held at any tim;a in the name of, or for the benefit of, Rogers; and

- g. any McGinn Smith Entity. |
11.  All documents concerning any loans, transfe_rs, or inVes@ents made by FAIN to
.or in any McGinn Smith Entity. A
12.  All documents concerning any loans, transfers, or investments made by FEIN to
or in any McGinn Smith Entity. |
13.  All documents concerning any loans, transfers, or investments made by FIIN to.or
in any McGinn Smith' Enﬁty.
14.  All documents concerning any loans, transfers, or investments made by TAIN to
or ih any McGinn Sm_ith.Entity. o
15. Ali documenﬁ concerning any loans, transfers, or investments made by any
" McGinn Smith Entity to or in another McGinn Smith Entity.
16.  All documents concerning any transfers of funds to or on behalf of McGinn,
including, but n‘Qt limited to, tr_ansfers by FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, TAIN or any McGinn Smith Entity.
-17. All documents concerning any transfers of funds to or on behalf of Smith, '

including, but not limited to, transfers by FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, TAIN or any McGinn Smith Entity.
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18. Al documents c'oncemiﬁg any uanéfers of funds to or on behalf of Lynn Smith;
. including; but not limited to, transfers by FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, TAIN or any McGinn Smith Entity..

19.  All documents concern_ing any due diligence performed in connection w1theach
investment inade by FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, TAIN or any other McGinn Smith Entity.

20.. All documents concerning any commutiications (includiné e-majl) cgnceming
FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, TAIN o any McGinn Smith Entity, including, but not limited to, any
communications with investors or potential investors and any communications with any entities.
in which FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, TAIN ‘_or any McGinn Smith Entity invested.

21. All documents concerning marketing or promotional materials concerning any
securities, notes, stock, or indebtedness issued by FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, TAIN or any McGinﬂ
Smith Entity.

22. All documents _concefning any tax returns filed by FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, TAIN, or
the McGinn Smith Entities for the tax years 2003 through 2009,

23.  All documents concerning any tax refurns filed by McGinn and/or Smith for the
tax years 2003 through 2009.

24. All documents concerning the financial condition of FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, TAIN,
and the McGinn Smith Er_ltities, including, but not limited to, any audited financial statements.

.25. All documents concerning compensation, payments and Sonuses in any form paid
" or awarded to, or on behalf of McGinn and/or Smith.

26.  All documents con<;eming Mr. Cranberry LLC.

27.  Documents sufficient to show all assets, liabilities and property currently held, or
purchased and/or sold since January 1, 2000, directly or indirectly, by or for the benefit of

McGinn and/or Smith, including without limitation, bank accounts, brokerage accounts,
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investments, business inteiests, loans, lines of credit and real and peréonal property wherever- ‘
éituated. | | |

28.  Documents sufﬁcient to show all money, property, assets and income received
from any source by McGir;n and/or Smith for the direct or indirect benefit of McGinn and/or |
Smith, inclnding, but not limited to, fees, commissions, salary, bonuses, options, and interest
income.

| 29.  Documents sufficient to idénﬁfy all bailees, debtors, and other person and entities
fhat currently are holding the assets, funds. or property of McGinn and/or Smith.

3‘0.' Documents sufficient to show all assets, funds, securitiés and real or personal
property invested by McGinn and/or Smith, or any other person controlled by McGinn and/or
Smith, and the disposition of such asseté, funds, securities real or personal pfoperty.

31.  All documents concerning any services or other consideration provided by Lynn .
Smith to any McGinn Smith Entity.

32. All documents concerning any services or other consideration provided by John
Faso to any McGinn Smith Entity.

33.  All documents concerning any services or other consideration provided by
_ Matthew McGinn to any McGinn Smith Entity.

34.  Documents sufficient to identify all email accounts and telephone numbers held
by McGinn and/or Smith. .

35.  All documents concerning any investor complaints against McGinn, Smith or any
McGinn Smith Entity.

36.  All documents concerning the performance and/or investment income of FAIN,

FEIN, FIIN, TAIN and any other McGinn Smith Entity.

10
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37. Al documents concerning McGinn’s statement to the Financial Industry
Regulatory Authority on February 3, 2010, that “_thésel.lqans [from TDM Cable] were meant to
be compénsation for not only the early stages of the transaction, but continuing management of
the business.”

38.  All documents concerning Smith’s statement to the Financ-ial Industry Régulatoi’y
Authority on February 1, 2010, that “all related party investments defined in a credit agreement
as 20 perceﬁt or more, that either Dave Smith, Tim McGinn, affiliated parﬁes owned, pledged
their fees from McGinn Smith Capital Holdings, MS Partners, and MS Advisors'to collateralize
the loan [to Capital Center Credit Corp.] ....”

39. Al documents concerning Smith’s statement to. the Financial Industry Regulatory
Authority on February 1,2010, that “in fact, there’s a substantial amount of monéy that is
accrued to the funds and is being allocated both for guarantees that were in place and also to -
‘dollars that were — that we now can —have to use if we want.”

40.  Documents sufficient to identify all credit cards and debit cards that McGinn and
Smith have used since 2003. '

41.  Documents sufficient to identify all mortgageé to which McGinn and/or Smith are
parties. |

42.  Documents sufficient to identify all safe deposit boxes in the name of or under the
control of McGinn and/or Smith. |

43.  Document sufficient to identify all memberships by McGinn and/or Smith in any
club and the source of all payments for membership conﬁibutions, fees and dues.

44.  Document sufficient to identify all cars owned or léased by McGinn and/or Smith

and the source of all payments for car loans and leases.

11
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'45. - Documents ;ufﬁcient to identify all entities in which McGinn and/or Smith served

or currehtly serve as an officer <')r director. -

46.  Documents suﬁﬁ;:ient to-identify McGinn’s ownetshlp or other 'inte.rest in any golf
club, gblf course or hotel in Waterville, Ireland or élsewhere. |

47.  All documents concémiﬁg the sale or transfer of the property located at 16 Port
Huron Roa&, Niskayuna, N.Y. | |

48.  All documents sufficient to show all compensation or other cdnsiderations of
value paid or given or transferred to Marlene Brustle by M&:Ginn, .Smith or any McGinn Smith |
‘Entity, . |

49. All doc_:umen.ts relating to any services pro.vided by Marlene Brustle to any

McGinn Smith Entity.

- Dated: New York, New York

April 29, 2010
s/David Stoelting
Attorney Bar Number 516163
Attorney for Plaintiff - -
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
. New York Regional Office
'3 World Financial Center, Suite 400
New York, New York 10281-1022
Telephone: (212) 336-0174
Fax: (212) 336-1324
E-mail: StoeltingD @sec.gov
Of Counsel:
Michael Paley
Kevin McGrath
Ldra Mehraban
* Linda-Amold
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